Annexure 10C ANIL A. DIKSHIT & co-

P .322-418
81 Chartered Accountants
15-A/11, Brindaban, Thane - 400 601
anil_dikshit@hotmait.com

Tel. : +91-98201 31902

Independent Auditor’'s Report
To the Members of DVK Investments Private Limited

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. We have audited the accompanying standalene Ind AS financial statements of DVK Investments
Private Limited (the company), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash
Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2. The Management is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
{“the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounting) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rule, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a frue and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
3. Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit,

4. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are reguired to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Ruies made thereunder.

5. We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India under, as specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from matetial misstatasment.

8. An audit involves performing procedures fo obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statemenis. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
financial controi relevant to the company's preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An

audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
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reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

7. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

OPINION

8. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(2) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31 March 2021;

(b) In the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the loss including other comprehensive income
for the year ended on that date, and

(¢) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

9. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (hereinafter referred to as the Order), and
on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the company as we considered appropriate
and according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure "A", a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

10. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b} In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as
appears from our examination of those books;

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this report are in agreement with the books of account:

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended:

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

{f} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure
“B", and

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accerdance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of cur knowledge
and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us:

{i) The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2021 on its
financial position in its Ind AS financia! statements:
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iiy The company has made provision as at March 31, 2021, as required under the applicable
law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts:

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the company during the year ended March 31, 2021.

For Anil A. Dikshit & Co.
Firm registration number: 100410W

Chartered Accoﬁnts

L
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Anil A, Dikshit
~ P?oprfetor
Membership No.: 036706

Place: Thane
Date: May 31, 2021

UDIN: 21036706 AAAACP4625



ANIL A. DIKSHIT & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Annexure — A referred to in paragraph 9 our report of even date to the members of DVK
Investments Private Limited on the accounts of the company for the year ended March 31, 2021.

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and
explanations given to us during the course of our audit, we report that;

i (a). The Company has does not have fixed assets, and therefore, the provisions of Para 3(1) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company;

i The nature of business of the Company does not require it to have any inventory. Hence, the
provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company;

ii.  The company has granted loans, secured or unsecured to one Company covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Act.

a) In respect of the aforesaid loan, the terms and conditions under which the loan was granted, is
not prejudicial to the interest of the Company;

b) The schedule of repayment has been stipulated:
c) There is no amount overdue for more than 90 days;

v, In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of the loans and
investments made and guarantees and security provided by it;

v.  The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public covered under Section 73 to 76 of the
Act and rules framed there under to the extent notified:

vi.  As informed to us, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under
sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act;

vii, (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the
company examined by us, the company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Wealth Tax, Service
Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate
authorities in India;

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the
company examined by us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Sales Tax,
Customs Duty and Excise Duty which have not been deposited on account of any disputes;

vii.  According to the records of the company examined by us and as per the information and
explanations given to us, the company has not availed of any loans from any financial institution or
banks and has not issued debentures. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(viii} of the Crder are
not applicable to the company:

ix.  The company has not raised any moneys by way of public offer and term loans during the year under
review. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the company:;

X. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out in
accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of any fraud on the
Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the course of our audit, nor have

e been informed of any such instance by the Management;
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xi.  The company has not paid any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly, the provisions
of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the company;

xi.  As the company is not a Nidhi company and the Nidhi Rules 2014 are not applicable to it, the
provisicns of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the company;

xiii.  Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicabie accounting standards;

xiv.  The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or partly or fully
or partly convertible debentures during the year under review, Accordingly, the provisions of Clause
3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the company;

xv.  The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the company;

xvi.  The company, as explained to us, is registered under Section45-! of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934.

For Anil A. Dikshit & Co.

Firm registration number: 100410W

Chartered Accountants
4

Anil A. Dikshit
rProprietor
. Membership no.: 036706

Place: Thane
Date: May 31, 2021
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”)

1 We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DVK Investments
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2, The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICA"), These responsibilites include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Qur responsibility is to express an opinicn on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting ({the
"Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAlI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Qur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over finangial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those

policies and procedures that
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(1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

{2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company, and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of contrals, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial contro! over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8 In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india.

For Anil A. Dikshit & Co.
Firm registration pumber: 100410W
Chartered Accountants

Pro‘prietor
~Membership no.: 036706

Place: Thane
Date: May 31, 2021



DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021

Notes
ASSETS
Men-current assets
a) Investments 3
i} Imvestments in equity instruments of subsidiaries
ii} Investments in associates
iii) Investments in government securities
b) Financial assets
i) Investments
iii} Share application money
¢) Non-cumrent tax assets (net)

-~ Th W

d) Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets
Current assets
a} Financial assets
i} Investments
ii} Cash and cash equivalents
iii} Loans 10
vi) Other financial assets 11
Total current assets
TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
a) Equity share capital 12
b) Other equity 13
Total equity

Liabilitles
Current liabllities
b} Other current liabilities 14
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

See accompanying notes 1 to31 to the standalone financial statements

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

2. z,
168,662,075 168,662,075
- 13,000,000

180,000 2,904,530

. 8,000,000

482,610 901,407
169,324,685 193,468,012
1,793,705 12,924,458
4,611,131 9,798,991

= 3,450,000
6,404,836 26,173,448
175,729,521 219,641,461
65,216,650 65,216,650
107,924,421 154,311,967
173,141,071 219,528,617
2,588,450 112,844
2,588,450 112,844
2,588,450 112,844
175,729,521 219,641 461

In terms of our report attached

As per our report of even date
For Anil A. Dikshit & Co
Firm Registration No. 1004 10w

Place : Thane
Date : May 31, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

DVK Investments Private Limited

DA
RISHNA DATLA
Director

&y
SONIA GUPTE
Company Secretary

Place : Thane
Date : May 31, 2021

SATISH VARMA
Director




DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Income:
Revenue from operations
QOther income

Total Income

Expenses:
Employee benefits expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before tax
Tax expense:
Current tax
- For the year
- Short provision of tax for eartier years
Total tax expense
Profit for the year

Earnings per equity share {(nominal value per equity share ¥ 10 each)

Basic {in T)
Diluted (in T)

See accompanying notes 1 to31 to the standalone financial statements

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Notes 3 2.
15 2,041,030 47,464,841
16 8,642,226 {352,959 )
10,683,256 47,111,982

17 591,450 592,879
18 13,303,435 7,016,033
13,894,925 7,608,912

{3,211,670 ) 39,503,070

(3,211,670 ) 39,503,070

19

(0.49) 6.06

{0.49) 6.06

In terms of our report attached
As per gur report of even date
For Anil A. Dikshit & Co

Firm Registration No. 100410W
Chartered Accountan

L

nil A. Dikshit
¢ Proprietor
Membership No : 036706

Place : Thane
Date : May 31, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

DVK Investments Private Limited
e
KRISHNA DATLA

Director
$en
oV
SONIA GUPTE

Company Secretary

Place : Thane
Date : May 31, 2021

SATISH VARMA.



DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

PARTICULARS

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

A. Cash flows from operating actvitles
Profit before tax

Adjustrnents for:
Met gain on sale / fair valuation of investments through profit and loss
Interest income
bividend income
Provision for doubtful debts and advances
Operating loss before working capital changes

Movements in working capital :
Decreasef{increase) in trade receivables
{Increase)/decrease in other asseks
Increase in uther liabilities

Income taxes pald
Net cash generated from / (used In) operadons (A)

B. Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received
Froceeds from sale of non-current investments
Purchase of investrments
in a subsidiary
in athers
Other current investments
Proceeds from salefredemption of investments
Current investrments
Non-current investments
Dividend received
Bank balances not consldered as cash and cash equivalents
Net cash {used in) / generated from investing actvities {B)

C. Cash flows from financing activities

Dividend paid (inclrding Dividend Distibution Tax)
Net cash {used in) f generated from financing activities (C)

Net increase / {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents [(A}+{B)+{C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash an hand
Balances with banks in current account
Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 9)

See accompanying notes 1 to3l ta the standalone financial statements

{3,211,670)

{2,041,030)

(5,252,700}

4,000
2,475,606
(2,773,094}
418,797
{2,354,297)

11,130,753

(32,424,025}
2,506,020
2,041,020

{36,746,222)

33,912,659
33,912,659

(5,187,860}
9,798,991
4,611,131

162,004
4,448,197
4,611,131

e

38,503,070

{6,136,229)
(460,273}
{47,004,668)

{14,098,100)

E-Eo——————

(24,996,000}
(62,427)
(39,156,527)
(46,027)
(29,202,554)

460,273

(40,482,048)
(6,568,309)
5,774,296

2,506,020
47,004,668

8,694,900

{29,999,659)
{29,999,659)

5,753,088
4,045,903
9,798,991

162,984
9,636,007
9,796,991

———

In terms of our report attached
As per our report of even date
For Anit A. Dikshit & Co

Firm Registration Ng, 100410W
Chartered Accounta,

it

Membership No : 036706

Place : Thane
Date : May 31, 2021

Place : Thane
Date : May 31, 2021

For and on behailf of the Board of Directors of
DVK Investments Private Limited

Sont”

KRISHNA DATLA
Director

5%
07"
SONIA GUFTE
Company Secretary

SATISH VARMA
Director




DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

1. Corparate informatian

DVK Investments Private Limited (‘the Company'} is a private campany domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisians of the
Companies Act, 1913, The registered office of the Company Is located at A- 1601, Thane One, DIL Camplex, Ghodhbunder Road,
Majiwada, Thane {West) 400610, The Company is engaged in the business of a residuary Non-Banking Financial Institute. The
Company has strategic long-term investments in subsidiary companies primarily in the business of renting properties, motion picture
productien and distribution, manufacturing of bulk drugs. The Caormpany is an investment Company as defined under the provisions of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 't has not accepted any deposits from public within the meaning of Non-Banking Financlal
Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits (Reserve Bank) Directions, 1998,

These Financial statements wera authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by the Board of Directors on May 31,
2021.

2. Slgalficant accounting policles
2.1 Statement of compliance

These standalone financial statements of the Company have beens prepared in accordance with indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended) togethar with the comparative period data as
at and for the year ended March 31, 2018.

2.2 Basis aof preparsHon and prasentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the histarical cost basis, except for: (i} certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period; and (Il) deflned benefit plans - plan assets that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting pericd, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair vatue of the consideration given in exchange for gogds and services.

{a) Fair ¥alue Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid te transfer a liabllity in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly cbservable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or fiability at the measurement
date. Falr value for measurement and/for disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except
far leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 17, and measurements that have some sirmllarities ta fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in ind AS 2 or vafue in use in Ind AS 36.

in addition, fer financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are cotegorised into Levei L, 2, or 3 based on the degree to
which the inpuks to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, cther than quoted prices Included within Level 1, that are observahle for the asset or llability, either
directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs far the asset ac liability.

The Company has censistenty applied accounting pelicies to all periods presented in these financial statements.,

{b) Operating cycle

Based on the nature of activities of the Company, the Company has determined its operating cycle as twelve months for the
purpose of classiflcation of Its assets and liabilities as current and non-Current.

(<) income Taxes

Income Tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

i} Current tax:

Current tax is the amount of inceme tax payable in respect of taxable profit for the year. Texable profit differs from ‘profit before
tax' as reported in the Statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible under the income Tax Act, 1961. The current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reparting perigd.

it) Deferred tax:

Deferred tox is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computetion of taxable profit under the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized
for all the deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is prabable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductable temporary differences can be ubdised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amgunt of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is na
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the assets t¢ be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reasured af the tax rates that are expected to apply in the pertod in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflect the tax consequences that would foliow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities,




DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is conwincing evidence
that the Company will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for set-off against
the normal tax liability, MAT credit recognised as an asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down to the extent
the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.

iil} Presentation of current and deferred tax:

Current and deferred tax are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised
in Other comprehensive incorme or directly in equity, in which case, the cusrent and deferred tax are also recognised in other
compgrehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax Habilities, where it has a legaily enforceable right to set off the recognized
amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultanepusly. In Case
of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off
corresponding current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities reiate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the Company.

{d) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized when it is probable that economic benefits associated with a transaction flows to the Company in the
ordinary course of its activities and the amount of revenue ¢an be measured rellably. Revenue is measured at the fair vatue of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue includes only the gross inflows of economic benefits, received and receivable by the
Company, on its own account. Amounts collected on behalf of third parties such as sales tax. and goecds and services tax are
excluded from revenue.

In vil

interest income from financial assets is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the life of the financial assets to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest an income tax refund is recognized on receipt of the refund order.
Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive payment is established which is generally when shareholders
approve the dividend.

{e} Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrurments.
Flnancial assets

Initial recognition and measurement:

ANl financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directy attributable to the acguisition of
financial assets are added to the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets as at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or fass. All reqular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised or derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases ar sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories -

1 Debt instruments at amortised cost

2 Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCIH)

3 Debt instruments, dervatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
4 Equity instrurnents measured at fair value through cther comprehensive income {FYTOCH)

Debt Instruments at amortised cost
A 'debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI} on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amartised cost using the effective interest rate {EIR)
method. Amortised cost Is calculated by taking into accaunt any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. Interet revenue calculated using the EER Is Included in other income in the Statement of profit and 10ss.
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a resldual category for debt instruments. Any debt Instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt Instrument, which
atherwise meets amortised cost or FYTOCI| criteria, as at FYTPL. However, such election is allowed enly if deing so reduces or
eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency {referred to as ‘accounting mismatch'}.
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Equity Instruments

All equity Instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading, are
classified as at FYTPL. For alt other equity instruments, the Company may make an imevocable eiection to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument- by-instrument
basis. The classification is rade on initial recegnition and Is irrevocabte.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FYTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument including
foreign exchange gain or toss , excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from CCI to
profit or loss, even on s5ale of Investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or 1055 within equity.

Derecognition
A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of & financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised {i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:
1] The cantractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
2) The Company has transfested its rights to receive cantractual cash flows from the asset or has assumed an ohligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either
{a] the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(h) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows frem an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvemnent; in that case the Comgany also recegnises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Campany has retained. Cantinuing involvement that takes the form of a guarentee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carmying amount of the asset and the maximum ameunt of consideration that the Company could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financlal assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss {ECL) moded for measurernent and recognition of
impairment loss on the following financiat assets and credit risk exposure;

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost

b} Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FvTOCI

¢} Lease receivables under Ind AS 17

d) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset
e) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

1] Financiai guarantee contracks which are not measured as at FYTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables or any contractual
right to receive cash ar another financial asset.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company te track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. right from its initial recognition. As a practicat expedient,
the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impalirment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The prowision
matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-
looking estimates. At every reporting date, the histerical cbserved default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed

Financial liabilities and eguity instruments

Classification as debts or equity:

Dabts and equity instcuments issued by the Compaany are classified as either financial llabilittes or as equity in accordance with the
subsLance of Uk Conliaciual arvangentents and the dafinltiona of a financial lisbility snd sn sguity instrument.

Equity instrements:

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest In the assets of the Company after deducting all of Iis
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue cost.

Repurchase of the Company's awn equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised
in Statement of profit and loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments,
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mpound financial instr nts:
The components parts of compound financial instruments (convertible nates) issued by the Company are classified separately as
financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substances of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liabifity and an equity instrument. A conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for @ fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible instruments. This amount Is recognized as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest method
until extinguished upan conversion or at the instrurnent’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liabillty component from the fair value of
the compound financial instruments as a whole. This is recegnized and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not
subsequently remeasured. in addition, the conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion option is
exerclsed, in which case, the balance recognized in equity will be transferred 1o other companent of equity. When the conversion
option remains unexercised at the maturity date of the conwvertible note, the balance recognized in equity will be transferred to
retain eamings. No gain or loss is recognized in the Statement of profit and loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion
opticn.

Transacton costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes are allocated to the fiability and equity components in proportion
to the allocatlon of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the eqguity components are recognized directly in equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included in the carrying amount of the liability companent and are
amortised over the lives of the convertible notes using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities:

Inltlal recognition and measurement:

All financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, Transaction casts that are directly attributable to the issue of financial
liabilities {other than financial liabilities fair valued through profit or loss) are deducted from the fair value of the financial liabilities
an initial recognition. Transaction costs directly atiributable to the issue of financial liabilities fair vatued through praflt ar loss are
recagnised immediately in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement:

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methed or at FYTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the
continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts, issued by the Company, and commitments issued by the
Company to provide a loan at beiow-market interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accaunting pelicies set out
helow.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL:

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration recegnised by the
Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies or is held for trading eor it is designated as at
FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument,

Financla! fiabilitles at FYTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or lusses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or lgss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial iability and is included in the 'Other
income’ line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of the
financlal liahility that is attribntable ta rhanges in the credit risk of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the Hability's credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit, or loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are recognised in profit or loss. The
remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability [s always recagnised in profit and loss. Changes in fair value attributable
to a financial liability's credit risk that are recognised in other comprehensive income are reflected immedlately in retained
earnings and are not szbhsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Gains ar lgsses on financial guarantee cantracts and loan commitments issued by the Company that are designated by the
Company as at FVTPL are recognised in Statement of profit or loss.

Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 29.

Financial liabiliti amortised o]

Financial kabilities that are not heild-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are
determined based on the effective interest method, Interest expense that is nok capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included
in the ‘Finance costs’ iing item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense
over the relevant period. The etfective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments {including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected Iife of the financial liabllity, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.
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Derecognltion of financial liabilites:

The Campany derecognlses financial liabilittes when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial fiability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification
of the terms of an existing financial liablity (whether or not attrlbutable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accaunted for as
an extinguishment of the originai financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of
profit and loss,

Offsetting of financlal insbruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the batance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right ta offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settte on a net basis, ta realise the assets and
sattle the liabilities simyltaneously.

{f] Leasing
Leases are classifled as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Company as lessee ;

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the Company at their fair value at the inception of the lease
or, if tower, at the present value of the minimum tease payments., The comesponding liability to the lessor is included in the
standalone balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate
of interest cn the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately In profit or loss, unless they are
directly attributable to gualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Company's general policy on
borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Rantal expense from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where
the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected
inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liabitity. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where anather
systernatic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

{g) Investments in equity instruments of subsldiaries:

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an
Indication of impainment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its
recoverable ampunt. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amounts are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

Upon first-time adoption of Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure its investments in subsidiaries at the previous GAAP
carrying amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS.

(h} Pravisions, contingent liabllides and contingent assets

Provisions are recegnized when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
abligation.

The amount recagnised as a provislon is the best astimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured
using the cash flow estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows "when
the effect of the time value of meney is material",

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
recejvable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

Contingent assets are not recagnized in the financial statements of the Company. A contingent liabillty Is a possible obligation that
arises from past events whose existence wllt be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recagnized because it Is not probable that an outflow
of resources wiil be required to sette the aobligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare case where there Is a
liabitity that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reiiably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liabllity
but discloses its existence in the financial stabements.

(i} Earmings per share
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per shares data for its equity shares

Basic earnings per share Is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares sutstanding during the financial year. The Company does not nave any potential equity shares, and accordingly, the
basic earmmings per share and diluted earnings per share are the same.
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{)) Cash and cash equivaients:

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash with banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes In value.

For the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above, net of autstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

(k) Use of estimates and Judgemeants

U]

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires the management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported ameunts of revenues, expenses, assets and llabilittes, and the accompanying disclosures,
and the disclosure of contingent Habilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates ave recognised in the pered in which the estimates are
revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amaunts recagnised in the financial
statements Is Included in the foliowing notes:

When the fair values of financials assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financia) staternents cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques which involve various judgements and
assumptions,

u | lives roperty, plant an ipment and intangible a 3

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation and amortisation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected
useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company’s assets are
determined by the management at the time when the asset is acquired and reviawed pericdically, including at each financial year
end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may Impact
their life, such as changes in technical or commerctal obsolescence arising from changes or impravements in production or from a
change in market demand of the product or service output of the asset,

Assets and obligations relating to emplovee beneft:

The employment benefit obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarlal basis using a number of
assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost/ {income} include the discount rate, inflatlon and mortality
assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions will impact upon the carrying amount of emplayment benefit obligations.

Tax expense : (refer note 2{c}]

The Company's tax jurisdiction is ingia. Significant judgements are invplved in determining the provision for income taxes, it any,
including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax pesitions. Further, significant judgement is exercised to
ascertain amount of deferred tax asset (DTA) that could be recognised based on the probability that future taxable profits will be
available against which OTA can be utilized and amount of termporary difference In which DTA cannot be recegnised on want of
probatle taxable profits.

Provisions: [refer note 2{h}]

Contingencies (refer note 2(h)

Recent ACCounting pronouncements

Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Forelgn currency transactions and advance consideration: On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (“"MCA™") has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind
A5 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on inltial recognition of the related asset, expense or income, when an entlty has received
or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency.

The amendment will come inte force from April 01, 2018. The Company is evaluating the reguirement of the amendment and the
impact on the financial statements. The effect of adoption of Appendix B to Ind AS 21 is expected to be insignificant.

Ind AS 115

In March 2018, the Ministry of Carporate Affairs has notified the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amended Rules, 2018
{"amended rules"). As per the amended rules, Ind AS 115 “Revenue from contracts with customers” supersades Ind AS 11,
“Construction contracts” and Ind AS 18. “Revenue” and is applicable for all accounting periods commencing on or after 1 April
2018,

Ind AS 115 introduces a new framework of five step model for the analysis of revenue transactions. The rmadel specifies that
revenue should be recognised when {er as) an entity transfer contral of gaods or services to a customer at the amount to which
the entity expects to be entided. Further the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s contracts with customers. The new revenue standard is applicable
ta the Company from 1 April 2018.

The standard permits bwo possible methods of transition:

Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented
in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policles, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errars

Retrospectivety with cumulative effect of initlally applying the stendard recognized at the date of initial application {(Curmulative
catch - up approach) The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the impact on the financial statements.
The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 is expected to be insignificant™
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Note 3- investments-(Non-cument)

1} Inwestments In subsidianes- In equity Instruments quoted (Fully
pald up) (At cost less impalrment in the value of investments, if
any}

a) Fermenta Biotech Limited (quoted) %**

1,503,75,318 {March 31, 2020 - 1,50,75,318 shares) Equity shares
of T. 5/~

Aggregate amount of quoted investments before impairment

i} Investment in assaclates - In equity instruments Unquated {Fully
paid up) (At cost less Impalrment in value of investments, if any)

a) Sitk Road Communications Private Limited
Nil [[March 31, 2020 - 5,18,834]] Equity shares of T 10 each

Note 4 -Investments {Non-current):
Equity Instruments:
Ungquoted Investments {all fully paid up)
Investments in equity instruments at FVTPL
Biodil Marsing Private Limited
30,000 {March 31, 2020 - 30,000] Equity shares of ¥ 10 each

Less; Diminutan in the value of investments

Island Vieerchemie Private Limited

12 {March 31, 2020 - 12} Equity shares of ¥. 15,000 each fully paid-up
Quoted investments (ail fully paid up}

HDFC Bank Limited

Nil [{March 31, 2020 - 840Q) Equlty shares of T. 2 each fully paid-up
ICICI Bank Limited

Nil {March 31, 2020 - 2,156) Equity shares of ¥. 2 each fully paid-up
Polypiex Corporation Lid.

NIl {March 31, 2020 - 2,000) Equity shares of T. 10 each fully paid-up
Jain irrigation Systems Limiced

Nil (March 31, 2020 - 1,800) Equity shares of ¥. 2 each fully paid-up
Mahindra Lifespace Developers Limited

Nil (March 31, 2020 - 2,200) Equity shares of ¥. 10 each fully paid-up
Piramal Enterprises Limited

Wil {March 31, 2020 - 400} Equity shares of T. 2 each fully paid-up

Total aggregate Investments (A}

Aggregate carrying value of unguoted investment before
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of Investments
Aggregate ook value of quoted investments

Aggregate market value of quoted inwestments

As at March 31, 2021
z.

168,662,075

168,662,075

168,662,075

As at March 31, 2021
T

As at March 31, 2021
2

300,000

{300,000)

180,000

180,000

——e—————

180,000

As at March 31, 2020
T.

168,662,075

168,662,075

e

168,662,875
As at March 31, 2020

3.

13,000,000

13,000,000

As at March 31, 2020
2

300,000

{300.000)

180,000

724,080

600,230

599,000

5,940

419,760

375,520

2,904,530
480,000
300,000

4,786,436

4,786,436
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Note 5 - Share application money
Jomaange Innovative Market Solutions Private Ltd

Note § - Non-current tax assets (net)
Advance income-tax {Net of provision for tax)

Note 7 - Gther non-current assats
Advance for supply of goods and services
Prepaid expenses

Nopte 8 - Investments {Current)
In Mutuat funds*
a) Frankiin India Bluechip Fund Dividend Reinvestment**
Nil {March 31, 2020 - 3,00,873.050) units of 2.10 each
b) HOFC Medium Term Debt Fund**

[Formerly named HDFC High Interest Fund - Short Term Plan]

Nil {March 31, 2020 - 1,14,335.409) units of .10 each
c] Franklin India Low Duration fund**

1,70,655.141 {March 31, 2020 - 4,54,924.778) units of ¥.10 each

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2021
L

482,610
482,610

As at March 31, 2021
€.

As at March 31, 2021
L4

1,793,705

1,793,705

* Investments in mutual funds have been fair valued at the closing net asset value (NAV).

= Denotes dividend reinvested in the respective funds

Mote 9 - Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks in current accounts
Cash on hand

Note 10- Loans {Current)

Unsecured, considered good
Loans and ICDs to related parties (Refer nete 21 and below)
Loans to others

Loans to related partles include

Amount outstanding as at the year end
- Loans to Directors

Maxirmurm amount outstanding furing the year
- Loans to Directors

As at March 31, 2021
2

4,440,197
162,934
4,611,131

As at March 31, 2021
T

2,000,000

As at March 31, 2020
T

8,004,000
8,000,000

As at March 31, 2020
I

901,407
901,407

As ar March 31, 2020
T.

As at March 31, 2020

[ &

7.469,113

1,207,393

4,247,951
12,924,458
As at March 31, 2020
T
9,636,007

162,984
9,798,991

As at March 31, 2020
L&

2,000,000
1,458,000
3,450,000

2,000,000

2,000,000
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As at March 31, 2021

Note 11 - Other financlal assets {Current)
Interest accrued but not due from banks and others

Mote 12 - Equity share capital
Authorised share capital:
65,30,000 {March 31, 2020 - 65,30,000) Equity shares of T 10/- each

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up shares:
65,21,665 (March 31, 2020 - 65,21,665) Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each.

a) Detalls of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company
Name of the shareholder

Equity shares of T 10/- each fully pald, No of
shares in
lakhs
Mr, Krishna Datla 32.66
Mr. Satish Varma 14.84
Ms. Preeti Thakkar 8.36
8.86

Ms. Anupama Datla Desai

b} Terms/rights attached to equity shares

T

As at March 31, 2021
T.

65,300,000

65,300,000

65,216,650

65,216,650

—_—

As at March 31, 2021

class

50.08%
22.75%
13.59%
13.58%

A5 at March 31, 2020
T

As at March 31, 2020
L&

65,300,000

65,300,000

65,216,650

65,216,650

As at March 31, 2020
% holding in the WNo of shares % holding in the

in lakhs class
32.66 30.08%
14.84 22.75%
B.86 13.59%
8.86 13.58%

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per

share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees.

During the year ended March 31, 2021, the amount of per share dividend recommended by the Hoard of Directors for distribution to equity

shareholders is . 5.20 {March 31, 2020: T. 4.60)

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be In proportion to the number of equity shares hetd by the shareholder.

¢} Reconcillation of shares cutstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

There is no mavement in the number of issued, subscribed and paid up equity shares at the beginning and ak the end of the financial year.

Nate 14 - Other current liablilties
Statutory dues
Others

Note 15 - Revenue from operations
Dividend Income from investments:
Interest an intercorporate deposit to subsidiary

As at March 31, 2021
T

2,588,450
2,588,450

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

T.

2,041,030

2,041,020

—_——————s————u

As at March 31, 2020
T.

112,844
112,844

Year Ended
March 31, 2020

T

47,004,668
460,273
47,464,941
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Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
T. 7.
Note 16 - Other income:
Net (Loss)/gain arising on financlal assets measured at fair value through 729,654 (352,959)
profit and loss
Gain on sale of financial assets 1,911,745 -
Miscellanecus income 827
9,642,226 {352,959}
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
T 7
Note 17 - Employee benefits expense
Salarfes and wages 591,490 592,879
Staff welfare expenses a -
591,490 592,879
Year Ended ‘Year Ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
T, 2.
Note 18 - Other expenses:
Rent 35,400 35,400
Rates and taxes 2,023 3,000
Legal and professional charges 231,493 249,780
Diminution in value of investments - 6,136,229
Payment ta auditors {Refer note below) 45,000 45,000
Lass on salefredemption of curment investments 11,248,209 6,020
Danation 880,000 500,000
Printing and stationery - 700
Self-assessment Tax 851.365 22,640
Miscellaneous expenses 9,945 17,264
13,303,435 7,016,033
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
T 2
Payment to auditors {excluding statutory levy)
For audit 45,000 45,000
45,000 45,000
Note 19 - Earnings per share (EPS):
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share :
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Loss for the year used for computation of basic and diluted eamnings per (3,211,6?-_0) 39,503,070

share (T in Lakhs})

Weighted average number of equity shares used in calculating basic and 6,521,665 6,521,665

diluted EPS

Basic eamings per equity share [noeminal value of share T 14 {2020: ¥ 10}] (0.49) 6.06
Diluted earnings per equity share [nominal value of share £ 10 (2020: ¥ 10}] {0.48) 6.06
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Staternent of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2021

| 4
{a) Equlty share capital:
As at March 31,  As at March 31,
2021 2020
Balance at the beginning and end of the year 65,216,650 65,216,650

(b} Other equity

Reserves and surpius

General reserve Ssecurities Spetlal Reserve Retalned Total
Premlum under REI Act eamings

[Balance as at Aprl 01, 2019 19,630,480 10,285,050 44,496,908 70,406,118 | 144,808,556
Profit for the year - . 39,503,070 39,503,070
Payment of dividend (Including dividend distribution tax} - - (29,999,650}  (29,999,659)
Transfer to genaral reserve - -

Transfer to speclal reserve under RBI Act . = 7,900,614 (7,900,514} <
IT_aalance as at March 31, 2020 19,630,380 10,285,050 53387522 | 72,000,915 | 154,311,967 |
Halance as at Aprit 01, 2020 19,630,450 10,265,050 52,387,522 72,008,915 | 154,311,967 |
[ Profit for the year = 5 (3,211,670} 3,211,670)
Payment of dividend {including dividend distribution tax) - - - (23,912,659) {33,912,659)
Transfer to general reserve - - - > =
Transfer to special reserve under RBI Act - - - -

Previos Year adjustraents = - 2 {9,263.217) (9,263,217
Fﬁce as at March 31, 2021 19,630,480 10,285,050 52,307,522 25,621,369 | 107,924,421
* Represents remeasurement of defined benefit plan

{c) Total equlty 3

As at A5 at

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Tatal equity [{a)+{b]]

173,141,071

219,528,617

See accompanying netes 1 todl to the standalone financial statements

in terms of our report attached
As per our report of even date
For Anil A, DIkshit & Co
Firm Regirtration Ne, 1Q0410W
Chartered Accountants

Membership No : 036706

Place : Thane

Cate : May 31, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
DVK Investments Private Limited

Sl

KRISHNA DATLA
Director

SONIA GUPTE

Company Secretary

Ptace : Thane

Date : May 31, 2021

-

SATISH VARMA
Diractor
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Note 13 - Other equity

<.
Reserves & Surplus
General reserve Securities Special Raserve Aetained Total
Premium under RBI Act eamings
|Eslance as at April 01, 2019 19,630,480 10,285,050 44,486,908 70,406,118 144,H08,556
Profit for the year - - 35,503,070 39,503,070
Payrent of dividend {including dividend distribution tax} - - {29,999,6549) 29,999,659}
Transfer to generad reserve - - - -
Transfer to special reserve under RB} Act - - 7,900,614 (7,900,614} -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 19,630,580 10.285,050 | 52,387,522 72,008,915 154,311,967
Balance as at April 01, 2020 19,630,480 140,285,050 52,387,522 72,008,915 154,311,967 |
Prafit for the year - - {3,211,670) {3,211,670)
Payment of dividend {including dividend distrbution tax) - - (33,912,659} {33,912,659)
Transfer tc general reserve - - - - -
Transfer to special reserve under RBI Act - - - - -
Praviosu Year adjustments - - - 19,263,217} 19,263,217
Ealance as at March 31, 2021 19,630,480 10,285,050 52,387,522 75,621,369 107,924,321

* Represents remeasurement of defined beneht plan
Description of nature and purpose of each rassrve

General reserve: General reserve is created from time to time by way of transfer of prafits from retained eamings for appropriation purposes.

Seturity premium: The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premiurm Reserve. In case of equity-settled share

based payment transactions, the difference between fair value on grant date and neminal value of share is accounted as securities premium reserve

Speclal Reserve under RBI Act: Special reserve is created from time o time hy way of transfer of profits from retained eamings for appropriation purposes.

Retainad eamings: Profits generated by the Company that are not distributed to sharehoiders as dividends but are rei

sted in the busi
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Note 20 - Leases: .
For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Assets taken on operating lease
During the year, the Company has entered into arrang for taking on leave and license basis
office premises, The t is cancetiable and the ag ¢ has no escalaton clause and is
renewable.
a) Lease payments recog 1 in the St of profit and loss for the year 35,400 35,400
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
b} Futura mini lease pay s under non cancellabie (eases in the aggregate and for each
10,000.00 12,500.00

of the following periods:
i} Nt later than one year
11} Later than one year and not kater than five years -
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Note 21 Interest on loans

It is the policy of the Company not to charge interest on loans and advances granted by it to its
business assoclates and the repayment of loans is as mutually discussed and agreed upon
petween the Company and the varlous parties.

MNote 22 Related party disclasures

Particulars

Fermenta Blotech Limited - Subsidiary Company (formerly known as DIL Limited)

Rent paid Rs. 35,4004
(Rs. 35,4004-)

Unsecured loans {ICD} given Rs, Nil#-
(Rs. 2,50,00,000/-}

unsecured loans {ICD) repaid Rs. Nil/-
{Rs. 2,50,00,000/-)

Interest received Rs. Nil#-
{Rs. 4,60,273}-)

Loans to Directors Rs,  20,00,000/-
{Rs.  20,00,000{-)

Late Shrimati D. Annapuma Charity Trust
[A trust controfled as Trustees by two directors of Company)

Donations given Rs, 8,80,000/-
{Rs.  5,00,000/-)
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Note 23 -Categories of the financial instruments

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Financial assets

Financial assets measured at fair value through the Statement
of profit and loss

investments in securities - quoted 180,000 2,904,530
HDFC Bank Limited - 724,080
ICICI Bank Limited - 600.230
Polyplex Corporation Ltd. = 299,000
Jain irrigation Systems Limited = 5,940
Mahindra Lifespace Developers Limited B 419,760
Piramal Enterprises Limited - 375,520
Island Veerchemie Private Limited 180,000 180,000

Investments in mutual funds - unquoted 1,793,705 12,924,458
Franklin India Bluechip Fund Dividend Reinvestment+* - 7,469,113
HDFC Medium Term Debt Fund** - 1,207,393
[Formerly named HDFC High Interest Fund - Short Term Plan]

Franklin India Low Duration fund#* 1,793,705 4,247,951
Financial assets measured at amortised cost

(i) Trade receivables ; -

{ii} Cash and cash equivalents 4,611,131 9,798,991

{iii) Share application money B 8,000,000

{iv) Loans - 3,450,000

(v) Other financial assets - .

Total financial assets 6,584,836 37,077,979

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
{ii} Trade payables

Total financial liabilities
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
Note 24 - Falr Value

Fair value of finandal assets and financial fiabilities that are not measured at fair value but fair value disclosures are required :

T

Carrying valye Fair value

Partlculars As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020

|[Financial assets
{i} Loans - 3,450,000 - 3,450,000
{ii) Share application money - 8,080,000 - 8,000,000
(i) Others financial assets = - = =

{iv) Trade receivables - - - -

{v} Cash and cash eguivalents 4,611,131 9,798,991 4,611,131 9,798,991
Total assets 4,611,131 21,2 48.9_91 4,611,131 21,248,991

|Financial labllitles
{i) Borrowings = :
(i)} Trade payables = 2
(iii} Other financial liabilities = -
Total llabllities - 5 Z m

The financial assets above do not include investments in subsidlaries which are measured at cost, investments
in mutual funds and equity instruments are measured at fair value through praofit and loss.

The Management censiders that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recagnised in
the financial statements approximate thair falr values.

Note 25 - Fair value hierarchy

As at As ax
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Fair Value Fair value Fair Value Fair value
hierarchy hierarchy

Financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss
Investments in mumual funds 1,793,705 Level 1 12,924,458 Level 1
Investments in securities - Level 1 1,923,310 Level 1
Total 1,793,705 14,847,768
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Note 26 -Financlal risk management objectives and policies
The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute
its business strategies. This note explains the sources of risk to which the Company is exposed to and how to mitigate those risks.

a) Market risk:
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices
comprise two types of risks: interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk . Financial instruments are affected by market risk include loans
and borrowings and investments in securities.

i} Equity price risk
The Company's unlisted equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising form uncertainties about future values of the investment securities. The
Company manages the equity price risk through diversification and by placing limits on individuat and total equity instruments. The Company's Board of
Directors reviews and approves all equity investmants.

As at March 31, 2016, the Company had exposure to eguity securities measured at fair value. The changes in fair values of the equity investments were
strongly positively co-related with changes in market index. As at March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, the Company did not have material investments inf
exposure to quoted or unguoted securities.

interest rate risk

—

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate foans and borrowings.

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all
other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows

Year ended (+)ncreasef-) | Effect on loss
decrease in basis| decrease f
points {increase)
March 31, 2018 +0.5G +0.50
-0.5¢ -0.50
March 31, 2019 +0.50 +0,50
-0.50 -0.50

The assumed mavemeat in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the observable market environment as at the respective reporting dates,

b) Credlt risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from #ts financing activities, including deposits with banks and
financial institutions, and other financial instruments. The credit risk is mitigated through credit approvals establishing credit limits and continuous maonitoring
of credit worthiness of the counter party.

i} Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management, Credit
quality of a customer is assessed based on a credit scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding
customer receivables are regularly monitared.

ii) Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy,
Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are
reviewed by the Company's Board of Directors on an annual basis. The fimits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial
loss through counterparty's potential failure to make payments.

¢} Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to settie or meet its obligations as they fall due, The company's policy on liquidity risk is to maintain
sufficient liquidity in the form of cash and investment in liquid mutual funds to meet the Company's operating requirements with an appropriate level of
headroom. In addition, processes and pelicies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management moniters the Company's net liquidity
position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Note 27 - Capital management
The Company’s capital management objectives are:

- to ensure the Company's ability to continue as a going concermn; and

- to provide an adequate return to shareholders through optimisation of debts and equity balance.

The Company monitars capital on the basis of the carrying amount of debt less cash and cash equivalents as presented
on the face of the financial statements. The Company’s objective for capital management is to maintain an optimum

overall financial structure.

(i) The gearing ratio at the end of the year was as follows:

Debts (Long term and short term borrowings including current
maturities of long term borrowings)

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 9) 4,611,131 9,798,991
Net debt (4,611,131) {9,798.991)
Total equity 173,141,071 219,528,617
Net debt to equity ratic -2.66% -4.46%
{ii) Dividend on equity shares paid during the year 3.
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020

Dividend on equity shares

Dividend for the year ended March 31, 2021 of ¥ 5.20 {previous
year for year ended March 31, 2020 ¥ 4.60} per fully paid share of
T 10 each

Dividend distribution tax on above

33,912,659 29,999,659
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Note 28 - income tax ®.}

A Tax expense recognised in the Statement of profit and less and other comprehensive income
consists of.

Particulars For the year ended For the year

March 31, 2021 ended March 31,
2020

Current ax:

- For the year 2

- Short provision of tax for earlier years - -

Deferred tax charge/(credit) - 8.51

Income tax expense reported in the Statement of profit and - 8.51

loss

Tax expense recognised In other comprehensive income - -

Tax expense - 8.51

B A reconciliation of income tax expense to the amount computed by applying the statutory income
tax rate to the profit before income tax Is summarised below:

For the year ended

Particutars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Profit before tax (3.211,670) 39,503,070
Enacted income tax rate in India {%) # 26.00% 26.00%
Income tax expenses calculated at enacted income tax rate {835,034) 10,270,798
Effect of tax on:
- dividend income being exempt {12,221,214) {2,879,085)
- carried forward tax loss of the current year for which DTA 13,056,248 {7.390,813)
is not created
Effect of above 835,033 (10,270,798)

Tax expense recognised in profit or loss -

Tax expense recognised in other comprehensive incame - -

Total tax expense = s

# The tax rate used for reconciliation above is the corporate tax rate of 26% {(March 31, 2020 - 26%)
at which the Company is liable to pay tax on taxable income under the Indian tax Laws

* Deferred tax asset has not been recognised in the previous year since the company is earning tax
free dividend income and the same is the major component of its total operating revenue.
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Note 29 - The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on May 31, 2021.

MNote 30 - Previous year's figures have been reclassified/regrouped wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Anil A. Dikshit & Co DVK Investments Private Limited \
Firm Registration Ne. 100410W

Chartered Accounta

fel —

KRISHNA DATLA SATISH VARMA
Director Directar
. ™
. Dikshit Oééo >
reprietor SONIA GUPTE
Membership No : 036706 Company Secretary

Place : Thane
Date : May 31, 2021

Place : Thane
Date : May 31, 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of DVK Investments Private Limited

Report on the Consolidated Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements the Consolidated Financial Statements of
DVK Investments Private Limited (the Holding company), its subsidiaries, its jointly controlled entities and associate
companies, hereinafter referred to as the "Group”, which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021,
the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information prepared based on the relevant records.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

The Holding Company's Board of Directors (the Board) is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated Ind AS
financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated cash flows and changes in equity of the
Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) The
Holding Company's Board is also responsible for ensuring accuracy of records including financial information considered
necessary for the preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and its associates and joint ventures respectively are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and
its associates and joint ventures respectively and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
which have been used for the purposes of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the Directors of
the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We have taken
into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder including the accounting standards and matters which
are required o be included in the audit report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act and other
applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those standards and
pronouncements require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated Ind As financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. in making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the company's preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the company has in place an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding
Company's Board _of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
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6 We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports
referred to in sub-paragraph 8 of the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements

Opinion

7 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its
associates and joint ventures as at March 31, 2021, and their consclidated total comprehensive income (comprising of
consolidated profit and consolidated other comprehensive income), their consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

8 We did not audit the financial statements of four subsidiaries and one jointly controlled entity included in the consolidated
financial statements, which constitute total assets of Rs. 68,916.63 lakh as at March 31, 2021, total revenue of Rs
38,660.40 lakh, net profit of Rs. 4,293.58 lakh and net cash flows amounting to Rs. 1,938 53 lakh for the year then ended
These financial statements and other information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished
to us, and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements to the extent they have been derived from such financial
statements is based solely on the report of such other auditors. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

9 Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@)

(b)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements

In our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated Ind As
financial statements have been kept so far as appears from our examination of those books.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by
this report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Indian Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its
subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint ventures incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group
companies, its associate companies and joint ventures incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2021, from
being appointed as a director in terms of 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company, its
subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint ventures incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure A

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the
information and explanations given to us:
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(1) The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at March 31,
2021 on the consolidated financial position of the Group, its associates and joint ventures.

(i) Provision has been made in the consolidated Ind As financial statements, as required under the applicable law
or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contract including derivative
contracts as at March 31, 2021;

(iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, wherever required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company and its subsidiary companies during the year ended March
31, 2021

For Anil A. Dikshit & Co.
Firm Registration Niy.100410W
Chartered ACCOUI’I}H ]

. Dikshit
Proprietor
Membership No. 036706

Place : Thane
Date : September 27, 2021

UDIN : 21036706 AAAAEV6842




ANIL A. DIKSHIT & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Annexure A to the Auditors’ Report

[Referred to in paragraph (f) under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements" section of our
report to the members of DVK Investments Private Limited]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

1 In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and
for the year ended March 31, 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of DVK Investments Private Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary
companies, its associate companies and joint ventures, which are companies incorporated in
India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2 The respective Board of Directors of the holding company, its subsidiary companies, its associate
companies are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ('ICAl'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects

4 Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

5 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the
company, its subsidiary companies, which are incorporated in India.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
6 A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
7 Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate
Opinion
8 In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters
9 Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to five
subsidiary companies, four associate companies and jointly controlled company, which are
companies incorporated in India, are based on the corresponding reporting of the auditors of
such companies incorporated in India. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter

For Anil A. Dikshit & Co
Firm Registration No. 100410W
Chartered Accountants

Proprietor
Membership No : 036706

Place : Thane
Date : September 27, 2021



DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31, 2021

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
" Notes 2. In Lakhs . in Lakhs
ASSETS
Non-cuirent assets
a) Property, plent and equipment 3 15,378.50 10,400.36
b) Capital work-in-progress 5,270.11 6,707.51
c) Right-of-use assets 4 1,292.55 1,428.46
d) Investment property S5A 6.870.38 7,126.17
€) Goodwill 58 1,209.69 412.79
1) Other intangible assets 6 1.680.35 647.55
g) Intangible assets under development 420.55 369.38
h) Investments in an associate 7 - 30.12
i) Financial assets
i} Investments ] 26.74 54.65
ii} Share application money 9 - 80.00
iil) Loans 10 1.85 25.00
iv) Others financial assels 11 219.25 405.68
1) Deferred tax assets (net) 58C 4,031.01 3,810.51
k} Non-current tax assets (net) 12 1,136.21 917.26
i) Other non-current assets 13 353.25 698.88
Total non-current assets T 37,890.44 T 3311432
Current assets — — -
a) inventories 14 16,227.05 12,858.19
b) Financial assets
i) Investments 15 17.94 129.24
ii) Trade receivables 16 6,001.48 6,977.42
iii) Cash and cash equivalents 17 1,725.54 849.44
Wi Bank balances ather than (il) above 18 2,773.80 2,559.54
¥} Loans 19 476.60 2,164.50
i) Other financial assets 20 347.83 637.28
©) Other current assets 21 2,655.95 2,487.44
Total cument assets T 31,026.19 T 20,663.05
TOTAL ASSETS TSI e
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a) Equity share capital 22 652.17 652.17
b) Other equity 23 22,692.68 20,202.32
Equity attributable to owners of the Company T 2338485 T 2085349
Non-controlling interests 12,867.66 10,499.08
Tots) equity T 3621251 T 3135357
Liabllites
Non-current lisbliities
a) Financial labilities
i} Borrowings 24 11,043.80 10,178.67
i) Lease liabilities 43 170.02 264.07
iii) Other financial liabilities 25 47.82 59.44
b} Provisions 26 449.20 405.83
¢) Other non-current liabllities 27 34.04 54.93
" . Total non-current liabllities 1174498 T 1096254
Current liabllites e
&} Financial Habifities
i) Boirowings 28 9,629.95 10,433.30
i) Lease liabilities 43 116.19 104.85
ill) Trade payables
A) Total outstanding dues of micro and 64 70.34 98.01
small enterprises and;
8) Total outstanding dues of creditors other 6,135.37 5,535.46
than micro and small enterprises
iv) Other financial liabilities 29 4,103.34 2,973.76
b) Other current liabilities 30 796.21 23474
<) Provisions 31 67.83 48.71
d) Cumrent tax liabllites (net) 32 32.01 32.02
Total current Habilties T 20959.24 T 19,6085
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES T 68,916.63 T 61777.37
—— e ]

See accampanying notes 1 to 68 to the C

n terms of our report atin

For and on babalf of the Board of L.
DVK Investments Private Limited .

/ﬁ;\c/,)

KRISHNA DATLA SATISH VARMA
Director Director

- “5
i
A GUPTE
Company Secretary

Thane Thane
Date: September 27, 2021 Date: September 27, 2021




DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
T. In Lakhs . in Lakhs
Notes
Income:
Revenue from operations 33 37.,748.93 29,464.63
Other income 34 911.47 1,233.38
Total Income T 38,660.40 T 30,69801
Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 35 14,194.63 10,561.26
Purchases of stock-in-trade 2,117.36 50.15
Cl i ies of goods, stock-in- 36 (2,874.73) (2.708.90)
trade and work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense 37 5,827.48 5,009.08
FInance costs 38 1,797.46 1,914.04
Depreciation and amortisation expense 39 2,030.84 1,499.97
Other expenses 40 10,336.52 10,032.12
Total expenses T 3342056 T 2635792
Profit before tax 5,230.84 4,340.29
Tax expense:
Current tax 58 1,129.02 336.88
Deferred tax credit 5B8C & 63 (219.00) (1,948.89)
Total tax expense T 01002 T @s1001)
Profit for the year before share of loss of an associate T a32082 T 595030
-Share of loss of an associate - = - (12
Profit for the year T 432082 T 594118
Other comprehensive Income: = ——
items that wiil not be reclassified to profit or loss
a) {l) Remeasurements of defined benefit plan (5.11) 240.63
(li} Income tax ing to of benefit plan 149 (70.07)
b) Net fair value change in in equity instr (0.65) 11.34
hrough other comp ive income
ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange differences in translating the financlal (22.97) (8.33)
of foreign op — —
Total other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (a+b) (27.24) 173,57
Total comprehensive income for the year T 4220358 T 612075
Profit for the year attributable to: e ———"
- Owners of the Company 2,339.51 2,961.28
- Non-controlling interests 1,981.31 2,985.89
4,320.82 5,947.17
Total other comprehensive income / {loss) for the year -
- Owners of the Company {9.43) 80.40
- Non-controlling fnterests {17.82) 93.17
27.25) 171357
Total comprehenslive income for the year attributable to: -
- Owners of the Company 2,330.08 3,041.68
- Non-controlling interests 1,963.49 3,079.06
4,293.57 T 612074
Eamings per equity share of T 10 each 41
Basic (in3) 35.87 45.41
Diluted (in ?) 35.87 45.41

See accompanying notes 1 to 68 to the C i financial

In terms of our report attaghed

For ANIL A DIKSHIT & C

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
DVK Investments Private Limited

KRISHNA DATLA SATISH VARMA
= Hroprietor Director Director
embership No. 036706
S22

) / '
SONIA GUPTE
Company Secretary

Thane Thane

Date: September 27, 2021 Date: September 27, 2021
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DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

T. in Lakhs
PARTICULARS March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
A. Cash flows from operating activitles
Profit before tax 5,230.84 4,340.29
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,030.84 1,499.97
Net unrealised foreign exchange {gain)/loss {226.07) 73.40
Loss on sale/write off of property, plant and equipment (net) 16.03 15.53
Allowance for doubtful debts 118.96 91.46
Share based payments to employees 592.05 554.69
Allowance for doubtful advances - 31.96
Impairment in the value of non-current investments - 43.94
Provision for impairment in the value of share application money - 96.76
in an associate
Gain on sale of financial assets - current investments (66.52) 60.08
Finance costs 1,797.46 1,914.04
Interest income (354.61) (569.14)
Dividend income (20.99) (170.49)
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back (214.20) (296.59)
Trade receivables and advances written off 90.96 42.33
Net loss on fair value changes of derivatives measured at FVTPL 110.15 -
Operating profit before working capital changes 9,104.90 7.728.23
Movements in working capital:
Decrease in trade receivables 646.07 9.70
Increase in inventories (1,916.60) (4,091.66)
(Increase) / Decrease in other assets (180.73) 1,131.49
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables (752.53) 1,554.67
Increase in provisions 57.38 14.00
Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities 702.30 (1,680.36)
7.660.79 4,666.07
Income taxes paid {(net of refunds) {1,347.98) {1,394.90)
Net cash generated from operations (A) 6,312.81 3,271.17
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment (5,527.10) (6,846.93)
property, capital work-in-progress, intangible assets and intangible
assets under development
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment 1.29 -
Intercorporate deposits given - {980.00)
intercorporate deposits received back 1,655.00 -
Interest received 478.81 464.69
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Refer Note 57) (943.85) -
Proceeds from share application money received back - 597.00
Proceeds from sale of non-current investments 27.26 64.55
Proceeds from sale of current investments 190.42 112.46
Dividend received 20.99 170.49
Deposits {placed with)/ received back from a financial institution 400.00 {300.00)
Deposits with banks not considered as cash and cash equivalents (net) (219.94) 2,583.88
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (3.917.12) (4,133.86)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long term borrowings 2,916.54 3.085.98
Repayment of long term borrowings (1,500.50) (6,528.31)
Net increase in short term borrowings 358.46 1,688.97
Finance costs (1,753.42) {2,055.68)
Repayment of Lease Liabilities (135.41) (213.86)
Dividends paid (342.83) (597.16)
Dividends distribution tax paid - (124.42)
Net cash generated used in financing activities (C) {457.16) (4.744.48)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A)+(B)+(C) 1,938.53 (5.607.17)
Add Cash and cash equivalents taken over on acquisition of a subsidiary (Refer Note 57) 61.15 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (1,724.45) 3,882.72

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 275.23 {1,724.45)




DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

Cash Flow Statement: (Contd)

. in Lakhs

PARTICULARS March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 6.39 5.95
Balances with banks
In current accounts 1,390.00 843.49
Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 329.15 -
Cash and cash equivalents {Refer note 17) 1,725.54 849.44
Cash credit and Bank overdraft facilities included under loans repayable on demand (Refer note 27) (1,450.31) (2,573.89)
Total cash and cash equivalents considered for cash flows 275.23 (1,724.45)

See accompanying notes 1 to 68 to the Consolidated financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For ANIL A DIKSHIT & CO For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

C 2d Accountan DVK Investments Private Limited
‘ M—‘
-
Anfl A Dikshi KRISHNA DATLA \TISH VARMA

Director Director

®

Sgoy |
IA GUPTE

Company Secretary

&»
Hr;'nhershlp No. 036706

Thane Thane
Date: September 27, 2021 Date: September 27, 2021




DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

1.1 Corporate information

DVK Investments Private Limited ('DVK' or ‘the Parent Company') is a private limited company having its
registered office at A-1601,Thane One, DIL Complex, Ghodbunder Road, Majiwada, Thane - 400610,
together with its subsidiaries DIL Limited (name since changed to Fermenta Biotech Limited), Fermenta
Biotech Limited (FBL- since amalgamated with the erstwhile DIL Limited), Fermenta Biotech (UK) Limited
(FBLUK), Aegean Properties Limited (APL), G | Biotech Private Limited (Gl BIO), CC Square Films
Limited (CCSFL), Fermenta Biotech GmbH (FBLGMBH), Fermenta Biotech USA LLC (FBUSA),
Fermenta USA LLC (FUSALLC) collectively referred to as “the Group®, is in the business of strategic
investments and through its subsidiaries in the business of manufacturing and selling of chemicals,
primarily bulk drugs and enzymes, renting of property and entertainment.

2. Significant accounting policies
2.1 Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with and in compliance, in all material
aspects, with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other provisions of the Act. The financial
statements of the Group have been consolidated using uniform accounting policies.

2.2 Basis of preparation and presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for: (i)
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period; and (ji)
defined benefit plan— plan assets that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below.

a) Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the
scope of Ind AS 17, share based payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102 and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
(b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company, and its
subsidiaries as disclosed in Note 44. Control is achieved when the Parent Company:



DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

- has power over the investes;

- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Parent Company obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Parent Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
and loss from the date the Parent Company gains control until the date when the Parent Company
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component or other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
Parent Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owner of the Parent Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

The financial statements of the Group companies are consolidated on a line-by-line basis and intra-
Group balances, transactions including unrealized gain / loss from such transactions and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated upon consolidation.

(c) Operating cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Group and the normal time between acquisition of
assets/liabilities and their realization/settlement in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has determined
its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current
and non-current.

(d) Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in ‘Other equity’ under ‘gain
/ (loss) on dilution’ and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the previous camying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/ permitted by applicable Ind AS). The fair vaiue
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under ind AS 109, or, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

(e) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carmied at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business less accumulated losses, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.



DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

(f) Investments in associates and joint ventures

Associates are those entities over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the entities but is not control or joint
control of those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. The joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilites of associates or joint ventures are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment, or
a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with Ind AS
105. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in
the consolidated balance sheet at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture. Distributions received
from an associate or a joint venture reduce the carrying amount of the investment. The carrying value of
the Group’s investment includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment
losses. When the Group's share of losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds its interest in that
associate or joint venture, the carmrying amount of that interest (including any long-term investments) is
reduced to zero and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has obligations or has made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using the equity method from the date
on which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture and discontinues from the date when the
investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or when the investment is classified as held for
sale. On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised directly in equity as capital reserve in the period in
which the investment is acquired.

After application of the equity method of accounting, the Group determines whether there any is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
net investment in an associate or a joint venture and that event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows from the net investment that can be reliably estimated. If there exists such an
objective evidence of impairment, then it is necessary to recognise impairment loss with respect to the
Group's investment in an associate or a joint venture.

When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount,
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that



DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2021

impairment loss is recognised in accordance with Ind AS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when the investment ceases to be an
associate or a joint venture, or when the investment is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains
an interest in the former associate or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition in accordance with Ind AS 109. The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the associate or joint venture is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would be required if that associate or joint venture
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate.
There is no re-measurement to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a joint venture but the Group continues
to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership
interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the Group, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are
not related to the Group.

(g) Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions

In preparing the financial statements of each individual Group entity, transactions in currencies other than
the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are transiated at exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
re-translated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items camied at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not re-translated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise
except for:

- exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for
future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as
an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings

- exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for
which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.
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For the purposes of presenting these consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into Indian Rupees using exchange rates prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (and atiributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate). When a foreign operation is disposed of, the relevant amount in the Foreign Currency
Translation Reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or
loss.

(h) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income eamed on the temporary investment of specific borrowing pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
(i) Employee Benefits

i) Short term and other long-term employee benefits:

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries in the
period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
in exchange for that service. Liabilities recognised in respect of short term employee benefits are
measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long term employee benefits are measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of services
provided by employees up to the reporting date.

i) Termination benefits:

A) Defined contribution plans: The Group contributes towards state govemned provident fund scheme,
employee state insurance scheme (ESIC) and labour welfare fund to all applicable empioyees and
superannuation scheme for eligible employees. The Group has na further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. Hence payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

B) Defined benefit plan: The employees’ gratuity fund scheme represents the defined benefit plan. The
cost of providing benefits is determined using projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Re-measurement,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of changes to the assets (if applicable) and the
retumn on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a
charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
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Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained
eamings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in
the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the
beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows:

i) service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);

i) net interest expenses or income; and

iii) re-measurement

The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss in the line item ‘Employee benefits expense'. Curtailment gains and
losses are accounted for as past service cost.

i) Share-based payments:

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the
determination of the fair value of equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in note 58.

(a) Includes impact of market performance conditions (e.g. entity’s share price)

(b) Excludes impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (e.g. profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period), and

(c) Includes the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g. the requirement for employees to save or
hold shares for a specific period of time)

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company's estimate of equity
instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each
reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
"Share options outstanding account”.

(i) Income Taxes

Income Tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

i) Current tax:

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from ‘profit before tax' as reported in the consolidated statement of profit and loss
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible under the Income Tax Act, 1961. The current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

ii) Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the comresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognized for all the deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
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probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of
deferred tax liabilities and assets reflect the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent
there is convincing evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax during the period for which the
MAT credit can be carried forward for set-off against the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised as
an asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid
convincing evidence no longer exists.

iii) Presentation of current and deferred tax:

Current and deferred tax are recognized in the profit and loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in Other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

The Group offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simuitaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities,
the same are offset if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the Group.

(k) Revenue recognition

The Group derives revenues primarily from sale of manufactured chemicals, bulk drugs, enzymes,
pharmmaceutical formulations, environmental solution products and rental income from investment
property. Revenue is recognized when it is probable that economic benefits associated with a
transaction flows to the Group in the ordinary course of its activities and the amount of revenue can
be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Amounts collected on behalf of third parties such as sales tax, value added tax and Goods
and Services Tax are excluded from revenue.

Effective April 01, 2018, the Group has adopted Indian Accounting Standard 115 (Ind AS 115) -
'Revenue from contracts with customers’ using the cumulative catch-up transition method, applied to
contracts that were not completed as on the fransition date i.e. April 01, 2018. Accordingly, the
comparative amounts of revenue and the corresponding contract assets / liabilities have not been
retrospectively adjusted. The effect on adoption of Ind-AS 115 is not material.

Rental income from investment in property

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
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operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income.

Sale of Goods:

The Group recognizes revenue when it transfers control of a product or service to a customer. The
control of goods is transferred to the customer depending upon the incoterms or as agreed with
customer or delivery basis. Control is considered to be transferred to the customer:

- when the customer has ability to direct the use of such goods and obtain substantially all the
benefits from it such as following delivery,

- the customer has full discretion over the manner of distribution and price to sell the goods,

- the customer has the primary responsibility when selling the goods and bears the risks of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.

Rendering of services:

Revenue from services rendered is recognised pro-rata over the period of the contract as the
underlying services are performed.

Infrastructure support services, consists of maintenance of common area in the investment property
and supply of essentials. Revenue from such services are recognised in accordance with the terms of
the agreement entered into with individual lessees.

Interest and dividend:

interest income from financial assets is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial assets to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest on income tax refund is recognised on receipt of refund order.

Dividend income is recognized when the Group's right to receive payment is established which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Export Incentives:

Duty free imports of raw materials under Advance License for imports as per the Import and Export
Policy are matched with the exports made against the said licenses and net benefit / obligation is
accounted by making suitable adjustments in raw material consumption.

The benefit under the Duty Drawback, Mercantile Export Incentive Scheme and other schemes as
per the Import and Export policy in respect of exports made under the said schemes is included as
‘Export Incentives’ under the head “Other Operating Revenue” in the consolidated statement of profit
and loss and is accounted in the year of export.

(I) Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

The Group had applied for one time transition exemption of considering the carrying value on the
transition date i.e. April 01, 2016 as the deemed cost under Ind AS for its property, plant and
equipment.
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Measurement at recognition:

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated in balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Freehold land is not depreciated. Cost
includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalized in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried
at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalized in accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. When parts of an
item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the camrying amount of property, plant and equipment and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and capital
work-in-progress) less their residual values on straight-line method over their useful lives as
indicated in Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation methods, useful lives
and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Assets Estimated useful
life (in years)
Buildings 30-60
Lease hold improvements(included in buildings) 5-10
Plant and equipment 5-20
Office Equipment (included in plant and equipment) 5-6
Computers (included in plant and equipment) 3-6
Furniture and fixtures 6-10
Vehicles 8
{m) Investment property

The Group had applied for one time transition exemption of considering the camying value on the
transition date i.e. April 01, 2016 as the deemed cost under Ind AS for its investment property.

Investment properties are properties held to eam rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including
property under construction for such purposes). Investment properties are measured-initially at cost,



DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured in
accordance with Ind AS 16's requirements for cost model.

Transfers to, or from, investment property shall be made when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by:
(a) commencement of owner-occupation, for a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied
property
(b) commencement of development with a view to sale, for a transfer from investment property to
inventories
(c) end of owner-occupation, for a transfer from owner-occupied property to investment property;
(d) commencement of an operating lease to another party, for a transfer from inventories to
investment property

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognized.

The estimated useful lives of Investment property are as follows:

Assets Estimated useful
life (in years)
Building 60

Plant and equipment 15

(n) Intangible assets

(a) Intangible assets acquired separately

The Group had applied for one time transition exemption of considering the carrying value on the
transition date i.e. April 01, 2016 as the deemed cost under ind AS for its intangible assets.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. The amortization is recognised ‘on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of an intangible assets, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss when the assets is derecognized.

(b) Internally-generated intangible assets - Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred. An
Intemnally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if and only if, all the below stated conditions are fulfilled:

(i) the-technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale;
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(ii) its intention to complete the asset and use or sell it;
(iii) its ability to use or sell the asset;
(iv) how the asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

(v) the availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset;
and

(vi) the ability to measure relfiably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of expenditure
incurred from the date when the intangible assets first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where
no intemally-generated intangible assets can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit and loss in the period in which incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intemally-generated intangible assets are reported at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Assets Estimated useful

life (in years)

Computer software | 3-6

Product know-how | 3-5

(o) impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amount of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the
extent of impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the
assets belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for a reasonable and consistent allocation basis to be identified.

impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is determined:

0] in the case of an individual asset, at the higher of the net selling price and the value in use;
and

(i) in the case of a cash generating unit (a Group of assets that generates identified,
independent cash flows), at the higher of the cash generating unit's net selling price and the
vaiue in use.

[The amount of value in use is determined as the present value of estimated future cash flows from the

continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. For this purpose, the
discount rate (pre-tax) is determined based on the weighted average cost of capital of the Group
suitably adjusted for risks specified to the estimated cash flows of the asset ]
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For this purpose, a cash generating unit is ascertained as the smallest identifiable Group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of
assets.

If recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its camying
amount, such deficit is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit and loss as
impairment loss and the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
is recognised for the asset (or a cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

(p) Inventories

Inventories consisting of raw materials and packing matenials, work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and
finished goods are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of all categories of
inventories is based on the weighted average method. Cost of raw materials and packing materials and
stock-in-trade comprises cost of purchases. Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprises
direct material, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure,
the latter being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs of inventories also include all
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

(q) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets are added to the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets as at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised or derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are financial assets that require defivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories -
(1)Debt instruments at amortized cost

(2)Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

(3) Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
(4)Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

{1) Debt instruments at amortized cost
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A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost, if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPP!) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
included in other income of the Statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the Statement of profit or loss.

(2) Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured as at FVTOCI, if both of the following criteria are met:

-The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and the contractual terms of the instrument that give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding.

-Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income
(OCI). However, the Group recognizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign
exchange gain or loss in the profit or loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to profit or loss. Interest eared whilst holding
FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

(3) Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria
for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. In addition, the Group
may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as
at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

(4) Equity Instruments

All equity Instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are
held for trading classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an
imevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
Group makes such election on an instrument- by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument including foreign exchange gain or loss, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI.
There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to consolidated statement of profit and loss, even on sale
of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Group’s balance sheet) when:

1)The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
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2) The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arangement; and either

(a) The Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) The Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement; in that case the Group also recognizes an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Group has retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortized cost, frade receivables,
other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial assets, and guarantees not designated as at
FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive (i.e.
all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit adjusted effective interest
rate for purchase or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Group estimates cash flow by
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Group measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime
expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12 month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the lifetime expected
credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if the default occurs within the 12-
months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12-
months.

if the Group's measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in
the previous period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that the credit risks has not increased
significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to the previous
period, the Group again measures the loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the
financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or
effort, that is indicative of significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
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For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that resuit from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, the Group always measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the
Group has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss
allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss
experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally
applied to debt instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and is not reduced from the carrying amount in the balance sheet.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debts or equity:

Debts and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments:

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue cost.

Repurchase of the Group's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities:

Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the issue of financial liabilities (other than financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
deducted from the fair value of the financial liabilities on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the issue of financial liabilities as at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement;

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method or
at FVTPL.However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for
derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts,
issued by the Group, and commitments issued by the Group to provide a loan at below-market interest
rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL:

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration
recognised by the Group as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies or is held
for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

- it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near tem; or
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- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
- itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid
on the financial liability and is included in the 'Other income’ line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in
the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch
in profit, or loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are recognised in profit or loss. The
remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is always recognised in profit and loss. Changes
in fair value attributable to a financial liability's credit risk that are recognised in other comprehensive
income are reflected immediately in retained eamings and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the company that are
designated by the Group as at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 49A.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost:

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at
amortized cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities
that are subsequently measured at amortized cost are determined based on the effective interest
method. Interest expense that is not capitalized as part of costs of an asset is included in the ‘Finance
costs’ line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities:

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a iender of debt instruments with
substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing
financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid
and payabile is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(r) Leasing
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Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as a lessor:

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of
the Group's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group's net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-ine basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the Group’s expected inflationary cost increases,
such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as a lessee:

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the company at their fair
value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum Iease
payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated balance sheet
as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation
so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the Group's general
policy on borrowing costs [see note 2(h) above]. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which they are incurred.

Rental expense from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases,
such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals
arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

in the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives
are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of
rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

(s) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settie the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows when the effect of the
time value of money is material.
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When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements of the Group. A contingent
liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or
a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probabie that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a
liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize
a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the consolidated financial statements.

(t) Eamings per share
The Group presents basic and diluted eamings per share data for its equity shares.

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year. The Parent company
does not have any potential equity shares, and accordingly, the basic eamings per share and diluted
earnings per share are the same.

{u) Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of cash credit balances as they are considered an integral part of
the Group’s cash management.

(v) Operating segments:

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM). The chief operating decision maker is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments of the Group and accordingly is
identified as the chief operating decision maker.

{w) Cash dividends to equity holders

The Group recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution is
authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in
India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is
recognised directly in equity.

(x) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires the management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Actual results
may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
and in any future periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation
uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements is included in the following notes:
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Fair value measurement of financial instruments:

When the fair values of financials assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial statements
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
valuation techniques which involve various judgements and assumptions.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets:

Property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets represent a significant
proportion of the asset base of the Group. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation and
amortization is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the expected
residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Group’s assets are determined
by the management at the time when the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each
financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation
of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technical or commercial obsolescence
arising from changes or improvements in production or from a change in market demand of the product
or service output of the asset.

Assets and obligations relating to employee benefits:

The employment benefit obligations depend on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial
basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost/ (income)
include the discount rate, inflation and mortality assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions will
impact upon the carrying amount of employment benefit obligations.

Tax expense: [refer note 2(j)]

The Parent Company’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgements are involved in determining the
provision for income taxes, if any, including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax
positions. Further, significant judgement is exercised to ascertain amount of deferred tax asset (DTA)
that could be recognised based on the probability that future taxable profits will be available against
which DTA can be utilized and amount of temporary difference in which DTA cannot be recognised on
want of probable taxable profits.

Valuation of investment property [refer note 55]

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill [refer note 2(0)]
Provisions: [refer note 2(s)]

Write down in value of inventories: (refer note 14)

Contingencies (refer note 60)
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DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 5A. - Investment property % in Lakhs
Freehold Plant and
land Buildings equipment Total

At cost or deemed cost as at April 01, 2019 20.79 6,088.71 2,039.74 8,149.24
Additions - - - -
Disposal - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 20.79 6,088.71 2,039.74 8,149.24
Additions - - - -
Disposal - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 20.79 6,088.71 2,039.74 8,149.24

Accumulated depreciation

As at April 01, 2019 - 371.83 394.60 766.43
Depreciation expense - 124.77 131.87 256.64
Balance as at March 31, 2020 - 496.60 526.47 1,023.07
Depreciation expense - 123.93 131.87 255.80
Balance as at March 31, 2021 - 620.53 658.34 1,278.87

Carrying amount

As at March 31, 2020 20.79 5,592.11 1,513.27 7,126.17
As at March 31, 2021 20.79 5,468.18 1,381.40 6,870.38
Notes:

Land includes ¥ 8.06 lakhs, being cost of land held in trust by the Executive-Vice Chairman and one of the directors of the
Subsidiary Company.
Notes 23 and 27 - For details of assets pledged as security

Note 5B. - Goodwill
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

T in Lakhs T in Lakhs
Deemed cost 533.79 533.79
Additions (Refer Note 57) 796.90 -
Accumulated impairment losses (121.00) (121.00)

1,209.69 412.79
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Note 6 - Other intangible assets

At cost or deemed cost as at April 01, 2019
Additions
Balance as at March 31, 2020

Additions

On Acquistion of a subsidairy (Refer Note 57)
Other adjustments

Disposal

Balance as at March 31, 2021

Accumulated amortisation

As at April 01, 2019
Amortisation expense
Balance as at March 31, 2020

Amortisation expense
Other adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2021

Carrying amount
As at March 31, 2020
As at March 31, 2021

(Refer Note 50)

T in Lakhs
Computer Product
software know-how Total
325.03 160.78 485.81
24.94 466.15 491.09
349.97 626.93 976.90
2.99 908.37 911.36
- 436.52 436.52
- 14.90 14.90
352.96 1,986.72 2,339.68
103.73 151.87 255.60
66.61 7.14 73.75
170.34 159.01 329.35
65.66 267.35 333.01
- (3.03) (3.03)
236.00 423.33 659.33
179.63 467.92 647.55
116.96 1,563.39 1,680.35
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March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
¥, In Lakhs ¥.in Lakhs

Note 7 - In {Non

(carrying amount determined using squity method
of accounting)

in =~ In aquity
Unquoted (Fully pald up)
Slik Road Communications Private Limited

Nl [{March 31, 2020 - 5,10,824)] Equity shares of € B 3012
10 each

B 301z
Notes: e —— - e
The financial Information in respect of this associate is not materiat to the group.
Proportion of Group's interest in the jate {Refer note 44)
Accumulated unrecognised share of losses of associate

Health snd Wellness india Private Limited -

| shore of losses of for the

year
Health and Wellness India Private Limited - bl

Accumulated recognised share of losses of

assodiate
Hesfth and Wallness india Private Limited 598.53 598.53
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
€. in Lakhs T.in Lakhs
Nota 0 - investments (Non-currant):
Equity Instruments:
Unquoted Investments (ail fully pald up)
i ganity ot FVIPL
Hodil Marsing Private Limited * 3.00 8.90
Nil Equity shares (as et March 31, 2020 - 89,000
Equity sheres of ¥ 10 each)
! It sty | #t FVTOC)
Shivalik Solld Weste Management Limited 41 411
20.000 Equity shares of ¥ 10 each. (s at March
31, 2020 - 20,000 Equity shares of ¥ 10 each)
Zukn Wilinvess Private Limitod 47.53 41.53

58,046 Equity shares of T 10 each (as at March 31,
2020 - 58,048 Equity shares of ¥ 10 each)

istand Vewrchemie Private Limited lao 180

12 (March 31, 2020 - 12) Equity shares of ¥. 15,000
each fully paid-up

56.44 6234
Less: in the value of i (50.53) {56.43)

Total A) 5.91 591
*During the year ended March 31, 2021 Ms. Biodil Marsing Private Limited has been closed down,

Quoted Investments (all fully paid)
I equity af FYTOO)
Abbott India Limited 20.83 21.49

139 Equity shares of ¥ 10 each (as at Manch 31,
2020 - 139 Equity shares of ¥ 10 each)

HDFC Bank Limited 724

Nil [{March 31, 2020 - 840) Equity shares of €. 2

each fully pald-up

1AQ Bank Limited 6.00

Nil {March 31, 2020 - 2,156) Equity shares of ¥. 2

each fully paid-up

Palyplex Corporation Ltd. 599

Nil {March 31, 2020 - 2,000} Equity shares of T. 10

each fully paid-up

Jain irrigation Systems Limited 0.06

Nil (March 31, 2020 - 1.800) Equity shares of T. 2

each fully paid-up

Mahindra Lifespace Developers Limited 420

Nil (Manch 31, 2020 - 2,200) Equity shares of T. 10

each fully paid-up

Piramal| Enterprises Limited 376

Nil {(March 31, 2020 - 400) Equity shares of T. 2

wach fully paid-up

Totul aggregate quoted Investments (B) 20.83 48.74

Total Non-current investments (A+8) 26.74 54.65

—ees e

Aggregate carrying valve of il before impai 56.44 62,34

amount of i i in value of i 50.53 56.43

Aggregate amount of quated investments and market value thereof 20.83 21 .49
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Notes to the C financial for the year ended March 31, 2021
March 31, 2021
R. in Lakhs
Note 9- Share application money
Healtl) and Welineis Indls Private Limited 186.34
Lasy: impaimment in the value of share application money {186.34)
ive Market ions Private Ltd -
Merch 31, 2021
T. In Lakhs
Note 10- Loans (Non-aurent)
Loan to i good - 1.85
Inter deposit - it doubtful - * 37.00
Less : Allowance for doubtful inter corporate deposit (37.00)
185

# Includes amount: glven as inter corporate depasit ko an associate
Amount outstanding as st year end

-Health and Wellness India Private Limited 37.00
Moximum amount outstanding during the year
“Health and Wellness India Private Limited 37.00
This loan was granted to Health and Wellness India Private Limlted for the purpose of their business.
in the for inter deposh
Bailance at the beginning of the year 37.00
Addition during the yaar -
Written back during the year -
Written off during the year -
Balancs at the end of the year T 3100

March 31, 2021

. In Lakhs

Note 11- Other financla) assets (Non current):

Security deposits 165.08

Bank deposits with remaining maturity of mora than 12 15.50

months*

Dwpansits with o financial instinution -

Interest accrued but nat due from Banks 331

interest accrued but not due from a financial institution -

Others

* This consists of deposits:

- kept for fund based bank guarantee with Bank of Baroda 1,00
- kept for fund based bank guarantee with Union Bank of india 14.50
March 31, 2021

T. in Lakhs

Note 12 - Non-current tax assets (net)
Advance Income-tax (net of provision for tax) 1,136.21
1.136.21

March 31, 2020
2. in Lakhs

186.34
(186.34)
80.00

80.00

March 31, 2020
¥.in Lakhs

25.00
37.00
(37.00)

25.00
e

37.00

37.00

304.83
{80.00)
{187.83)

37.00
——

March 31, 2020
%. in Lakhs

139.68
13.76

200.00
310
3239
16.75

405.69
———

100
12.76

March 31, 2020

2.in Lakhs

917.26
917.26
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Notes to the C fimanchal for the year ended March 31, 2021
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
T in iaihs € in Lakhs
Note 13 - Other axsets (Non-asvent)
Capital advances 317.64 61218
Adwwncss recovaTehie 0 cmi or king
Ursncured consldeved good
Unseciprmel. Conimares sestéy 23.35 13.01
S 1961
Lot Aosane Sor ooutithal axtusses Pk 1901
Defasred rent 5.00 843
Prepaid experses 26.06 74.51
with it arn 375
3B 698,88
e
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
¥, in Lekhs T. m Lakhs

Notm 14 - hvantories
(At lower of cost end net resiisable valus)

Ruw meterisls arnd pecking rmsteriels [Indudes stock n 5,520.10 5,308.05
transit of T 95.89 Lakhs (as st March 31, 2020 € 490.14
Lakhs))

Traded goods [Indiusles stock in trensit of ¥ 206.36 Lakhs 455.03
(> =L March 31, 2020 WI})
Work-in-gragrea 6,751.98 5,140.06
Finishmd goods. 2A%/ 45 2,018.85
Stores end spares 66346 39123
16,227.05 12,858.19
Notes :
(1) The cost of invantnries recagnised ss expamse is disclosad in nates 34, 35, 39 and as purchase of stock-in-trade in the Consolidated stxtament
of profit end loss.
(i) mvantory wiite downs are the rsture of plan and net reali value, Write downs of
Wmﬁlo!lslnlﬁs(utmal 2020 - ¥ 19 07 Lakhs). mmhmmnmsmmmm
Conanlideted statevrart of profit and
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
. n'Lakhs . in Lakhs

Note 15 fvestrents (Current)
In Mutual fnds at FVTPLY
Unquoted investmants (Units of € 10 each fully paid)
Frankfin india Bluachip Fund Dividend Reimvestiment™

Nil (March 31, 2020 - 3,00,873.050} units of .10 sach . 74.69
HOFC Medium Term Dbt Fund™
[Farmevty named HDFC High interest Fund - Stwart Tesm Plan}
Nl [March 35, 2020 - 1.14,335 4095) units of T.10 sach - 1207
Frankiin India Low Duration fund*
1,70,655.141 [(Mmrch 31, 2020 - 4,54,924.7784) units of ©.10 each 1794 248
129.24
March 31, 2021 Masch 31, 2020
€. In Laiths T.in Laidws
Nota 16 - Trede receivables (insacuved)
Considered good 6,601.48 6.977.42
Cradit mpeired 48124 366.61
T damm RE
Lass: Allowence for doubtful dubts (expected credit ioms aNowancs) {48129 {366.:61)
T ©a0ias 7
Movement in the expected credit loss silowence N & =
Balsnce st the begiming of the year 368.61 308.73
Addition during the year 11896 91 46
Written off during the year {433) =
Reverssl during the year - (33.58)
Balance at the end of the yesr T asiza T 36661




DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the C: financial

for the year ended March 31, 2021

March 31, 2021
. in Lakhs
Note 17 Cash and cash squivalants
Balances with banks
In current accounts 1,3%0.00
In depesit accounts with orlginal maturity for less than 3 manths 329.15
Cash on hand 6.39
1,7
March 31, 2021
T, in Lakhs
Note 18 Bank balances other than cash snd cash equivelents
Balances with banks
10 Unpaid dividend necetnts. 9.82
in escrow account 0.86
In depaosit accounts with original maturity for more 2,763.12
than 3 months but tess than 12 months*
2,773.80
*This indudes depasits held under lien by bank against and oilter
2020: ¥ 1,947.61 Lakhs)
March 31, 2021
.in Lakhs
Note 19- Loans (Qurmant)
Unsecured, considered goad
Inter corporate depaosits # (Refer note 64)
D.K Biopharma Private Limited 475.00
Laan te Director
Loans to employees 1.60
Others -
476,60

# The inter-corporate deposits were granted to the entity for the purposs of its Busingss.

Note 20 - Other financial assets (Current)
Intarest accrued but not due
On fixed deposits from banks
On fixed deposits with a financial institution
©On Inter corporate depasits (Refer note 64)
Deposits with a finandal institution®
Others
Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Less: Allowance far doubtful advances

*Depasits kept under lien with Bajaj finance limited amounting to € Nil Lakhs (as at March 31, 2020: € 400 Lakhs )

March 31, 2021
. in Lakhs

43.07
4854
46.96
200.00

9.26
9.26
347.83

March 31, 2021
. in Lakhs
Note 21 -Other cuarent assets
Advance for supply of goods and servicas
Considared good 859.31
Considered doubtful 11.99
Lesa: Allowanco for doubtiul sdvances (11.99)
B859.31
Deferred rent 15.75
Prepaid axponses 216.72
Travel advances to employees 6.37
Export Incentive recelvables
Conslderad good 921.86
Considered doubtful 3.24
Less: Aliowance for doubtfut export incentive receivables 3.2¢0)
921.86
with 635.61
Others 033
2,655.95
inthe for doubtful adv und axport i Iy
Balance at the beginning of the year 39.60
Addition during the yeoor -
Written off during the year %
Roversal during the year {24.37)
Balance ot the end of the year 15.23

March 31, 2020
R.in Lakhs
643.49

595
849.44

March 31, 2020
. In Lakhs

13.51
370
2,542.33

2,559,54

t0 T 1,015.10 Lakhs {as at March 31,

March 31, 2020
2. in Lakhs

2,130.00
20.00
1450

2,164.50

March 31, 2020
2 in Lakhs

March 31, 2020
. in Lakhs

41597
36.36
(36.36)
415.97

362
180.14
28.72

488.26
324
(.29
488,26
1,370.73

2,487.44



DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the C financlal for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 22 - Equity share capitel:
Authorised:

65,30,000 Equity shares of € 10/- each (as at March 31,
2020 - 65,30,000 Equity shares of ¥ 10/- sach)

Issued, subscribed and paid-up :

65,21,665 Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each (as ot March 31,
2020 - 65,21.665 Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each)

8) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Parent Company
March 31, 2021

Name of the shareholders

Equity shanes of T10/- each fully peid No of Shares
in Lakhs

Mr Kirshna Datfa 3266

Mr. Satish Varma 14.84

Ms. Preet] Thakkar 8.86

Ms. Anupema Detla Desal 8.86

b) Tarms/rights atinched to equity shares

March 31, 2021
2. In Lakhs

653.00

652,17

652.17

% holding in the
class

50.08%
22.75%
13.59%
13.56%

share pending

No of Shares in
Lakhs

32.66

1484

8.86

8.86

March 31, 2020
T In Lakhs

653.00

653.00

65217

652.17

March 31, 2020

9% holding in the
class

50.08%
22.75%
13.59%
13.56%

The Group Company has only ane dass of equity shares having a par value of ¥. 10/ per share. Each holder of equity sheres is entitled to
one vote per share, The Group Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees.

During the year ended March 31, 2021, the amount of per share dividend recommended by the Board of Directors for distribution to equity
shareholders

is . 5,20 (March 31, 2020: X 4.60/-)

in the event of liquidation of tha Gmup Cmnpany.ﬂnhddusdequkystwnsmll be entitied to receive remaining assets of the Company,

after distribution of all p amounts. The will be in

<} Recondiilation of the shares cutstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

o the number of equity shares held by the shareholder,

There is no movement in the number of issued, subscribed and paid up equity shares at the beginning and at the end of the financial year.
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DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the C. for the year ended March 31, 2021
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
2. In Lakhs 2. in Lakhs
Nate 25 - Other finandal {lablifties (Non- current}
Deposits from tenamts 47.82 59.44
47.82 T 584
— —_— .
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
T In Lakhs ?. In Lakhs
Note 26 - Provisions (Non- current)
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity [Refer note 41] 127.44 104.10
Compensated absences 321.76 301.73
449.20 40583
Merch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
€ in Lakhs T in Lakhs
Note 27 - Other liabllities {Norn-current)
Deferred rent 34.04 54.93
34.04 5493
— —_—
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
T in Lakhs ¥.in Lakhs
Note 28 - Borrowlngs (Current)
Loans repayable on damand
From banks {Secured)
Cash credit and Bank overdraft 1,450.31 2,573.89
Packing credit 5,606.23 6,419.83
Short term Working capital loan 2,573.41 1.430.58
9,620.95 10,433.30
—_—

Packing credit, cash credit fram Union Bank of India. are secured by first pari-passu charge on hypathecation of stodks, book debts and and by
wquitable mortgage with Yes Barrk limited and HDFC Bank Limited of factory land and buildings at Dahej and Kullu and all moveabla property.
plant and equipment of the Company except vehides and Plant 4 ot Dahej. The average interest rate for packing credit in foreign currency is
3.40% to 3,.90% (EURO PCFC - EURIBOR+3.10%, USD PCFC - 6M LIBOR+3.10%) and average interest rata for cash credit is 11.18%

Packing credit from Yes Bank Limited is secured by first pari-passu charge on cument asseis of the Subsidiary Company and by equitable
mortgege of factory land and buildings at Dahej and Kutlu with Union Bank of India and HDFC Bank Limited and all moveable property, plant and
equipment of the Company except vehicles and Plant 4 at Dahej . The averege interest rate for packing credit in foreign currency is 2.75%.

Packing credit and cash credit fadlity fram Kotak Mahindre Bank Limited for previous year wes secured by First pari-passu charge on current
assets, plant and | of the y Comparry and equitable mortgage of factory land and buildings et Dahe} and
Kullu with Union Bank of India and Yes Bank Limited {excluding the plant and building financed through term loan from Union Bank and Yes
Bank). The sverage interest rete for packing credit in foreign cumrency was 2.5% and Cash credit was 10.50%

Packing credit and Working Capltal Demand Loan from HDFC Bank Umlt@i is secured by F|rst pari-passu charge on curent assets, exclusive
charge on assets of plant 4 at Dahej, plant and of the y Comnpany and equitable mortgage of factory
land and buildings at Dahej and Kullu with Union Bank of India and Yes Bank Limited (excluding the plant and building financed through term
loan from Union Bank of India and Yes Bank Limited).The average interest rate for packing credit in foreign currency is 2.7% and Working Capital
Demand Loan is B.79%

Short term working capital loan teken from Union Bank of india are secured against the lien of fixed depusits. The avernge interest rate is in the
rngo of B.57% to 7.6%



DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the C financial for the year ended March 31, 2021
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
T In Lakhs T in Lakhs
Note 29 - Othar financial liabilities (Current)
Current maturities of long-term debts (Refer note 23) 2,258.63 1417.05
Deposits from tenants 548.71 54154
Payable to the employees / directors 723.00 562.96
Liability for capital expenditure 404.81 39555
Interest accrued but not due on hormowings 48.22 43.15
Derivatives not designated as hedge 110.15 .
Undclaimed dividend 9.02 1351
T 410334 T 297316
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
T in Lakhs T. in Lakhs
Note 30 - Other current liabilitles
Statutory duas 176.12 21.30
Advance from customers 552.22 161.81
Deferred rent 41.99 50.50
Others 25.88 113
796.21 T 23a7a
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
T in Lakhs Z.in Lakhs
Note 31 - Provisions (Current)
Provislon for employee bensfits
Compansated absences 61.85 4274
Other provisions
Provislon for share of loss in e joirt venture in excess 5.98 597
of cast of Investment
67.83 - an
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
€ In Lakhs i Eakhis
Note 32 - Cinment: tax llabilities (net}
Provision for income tax (net of advance tax) 32.01 32,02
32,01 T 3202
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
T in Lakhs ¥. in Lakhs
Note 33 - Revenue from operstions
Sale of products 35,348.13 26,725.15
Rent Income 1,429.62 1,377.86
Amortised deferred rent 56.97 62,22
Sale of services 41.88 49.05
Service incame {infrastructure support services to tenants) 257.97 308.02
Dividend income from Investments: 20.41 17005
Qther operating revenues
Export incentive 563.71 73831
Scrap sales 30.24 33.97
T 3774893 T 2926463
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
€ in Lakhs . in Lakhs
Note 34 - Other Income:
Interest income on financial assets camied at amortised cost:
Bank deposits 191.06 37985
Other finandial assets 163.55 189.29
Dividend income on investments in equity lnstruments 0.58 0.44
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income
Income from Sale of films rights - 200.00
Insurance Claims 011 20.06
Foreign exchange gain (net} 254.84 14514
Net (Loss)/gain arising on financial assets measured at fair 7.30 128
value through profit and loss
Gain flass)on sala of financial assets - curent investments 79.12
Liabllities / provisions no longer required written back 214.20
Miscellaneous income 0.71
911.47
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
T in Lakhs R.in Lakhs
Nota 35 - Cost of materials consumed:
ies of raw iats / packing ials at the 5.308.05 4,050.21
beginning of the year
Add: Purchases 14,376.53 11,775.27
Add: Foreign currency translation difference 30.15 4383
Less: ies of raw ials / packing i 5,520.10 5,308,05
at the end of the year

14,194.63 10,561.26
——— —_—



DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE UIMITED

Notes to the C financial for the year ended March 31, 2021
March 31, 2021

T in Lakhs
Note 36 - Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress
Inventorles at the end of the ysar

Work-in-progress 6,751.98
Stock-in-Trade 455.03
Finished goods 2,836.45

10,043.46
Inventories at the beginning of tha year

Work-in-progress 5,140.05
Finished goods 2,018.85
7.158.90

Foreign currency translation differance

March 31, 2021
T in Lakhs
Note 37 - Employes benefits expense
Salaries and wages 4,541.76
Contributlon ta provident and other funds 230.58
Gratuity expense [Refer note 41) 54.52
Share based paynents to emplayees [Refer note 58] 592,05
Staff weifare expenses 408.57
582748
March 31, 2021
Mote 34 - Finance costs; ¥ in Lakhs
Interest on
Tenm loans 892,35
Loans repaysble on demand 565.62
Loans from related parlies -
Lease liabilities 38.97
Linbilities carried at amortised cost (Unwinding of interest) 59.38
Others 10.62
Other borrowing costs 230.52
1,797.46
Merch 31, 2021
Noto 39 - ond T in Lakhs
Depredietion of property. plant and equipment (Refer note 3) 1,292.39
Depraciation on right-of-use assets (Refer note 4) 149.64
Deprectation of investment property (Refer note 5A) 255.80
333.01

Amatisation of intanglble essets (Refer note 6)
2,030.84

March 31, 2020

. in Lakhs

5,140.06

2,018.85
71158.91

2933.87

1,482.55

4,422.92
(27.59)
{2,708.90}

March 31, 2020
2. in Lekhs

3,766.81
220.54
9274
55469
374.30
5,009.08

March 31, 2020
¥, in Lakhs

1,207.13
449.10
4.60
38.54
98.84

513
109.70

1,914.04

March 31, 2020
¥.in Lakhs
1,016.72
152.86
256.64

73.75
1,499.97



DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Nates to the C financial for the year ended March 31, 2021
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
2 in Lakhs €. in Lakhs
Nota 40 - Other expenses:
GST other than recovored on sales 159.38 123,69
Contract labour chargas 482.54 42623
Power and fuel 1,360.44 1,236.86
Processing charges 1,353.42 392,98
Repairs to Buildings 46.30 59.49
Repairs to Plant and machinery 202,50 151.96
Stores and spare parts consumed 930.92 994.23
Water charges 62.42 36.80
and sales 196.39 85364
Freight and forwarding charges 948.70 57533
Cormmission on sales 767.97 908.81
Rent (including lease rentals) 37.30 45.52
Repairs and maintenance -cthers. 714.82 769.25
Insuranca 275.13 276,96
Rates and taxes 357.04 269,40
Allowance for doutitil debts 118.95 9146
Migwiance for doubtiul advances - 3196
Trade recelvables and sdvences written off 96.53 230.16
Loss: Allwance hold (5.57) 90,96 {187.83) 42,33
isicn for i In the value of nt investments - 4394
Provision for impaiment in the value of share application money in an Bssoc - 96.76
Non current Investment written off 5.90 -
Less: Allowance held (5.90) - - -
Loss on ion of current i - 12,60 0.06
Dimil invalue of - 61.36
Travelling and conveyance 348,72 714.08
Professional and legal fees 713.30 0810.02
Payment to auditors (Refer noia below) 63.34 48.37
Postage and telephone 34.63 49.67
Printing and statlonery 20.46 85,51
Net loss on fair value changes of derlvatives at FVTPL 110.15
Sacurity Expenses 84.78 106.10
Staff recrultment expenses 2892 17.63
Bank charges 102,89 94.90
Inital cost for operating leases 50.31 59.32
Analytical Charges 92.46 136.72
Lass on ite off, of plant and i (ner) 16.03 15.53
Donatlons 8.80 5.00
Self-assessment Tax 8.51 0.23
Miscellaneous enpenses 457.43 400.94
T 103%52 10,032.12
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
¥ n Lakhs T in Lakhs
Payment io suditors (excluding statutory levy)
For audit 42.49 25.68
For lirmited review 15.00 15.00
For other services 514 6.51
Reimburserent of expenses 0.71 118
63.34 48.37
Nota 41 - Eamlings per shara (EPS):
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share :
Warch 31, 2021 March 31, 3020
Profit fox the year used fo computation of basic and GIAGG GaENIngs por FEEEY 756128
share ( Tin lakhs)
Weighted averaga number of equity shares used in calculating basic and 6,521,665 6,521,665
diluted EPS [Refer notes 21 (c)}
Basic eamings per equity share [nominal value of share ¥ 10 {March 31, 35.87 45.41
2020:%10)]
Diluted eamings per equity share {nominal value of share 10 (March 31, 3587 4541

2020:T 10)]



DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

¥ In Lakhs
Hote: 42 - Employee benclits
The Group operates foliowing employee benefit plans
| Definedc plans: F fund, fund, Employee state e scheme (ESIC) and Labour welfare fund.
Ul Defined benefit plan: Gratulty (funded)
Il Other iong tenm benefit plan: C: absences
March 31, 2021 "March 31, 2020
1) Defined Contribution Plans
The Group defined c benefit plans for all qualifying
employees of the Group. The contribution to defined c lon plan rec as
in the C of profit and loss for the year Is as under (Refer
note 36).
ployer's ¢ to p fund 217.40 206.84
'S C to fund 1.53 1.63
Employer's contribution to ESIC and Empioyees Deposit Linked Insurance (EDLY) 11.56 11.98
Employer's contributlion to labour welfare fund 0.09 0.09

I} Defined benefit plan
The Group operates a defined benefit plan, viz., gratuity,

In respect of Gratuity, a defined benelit plan, contributions are made to LIC’s Recognised Group Gratuity Fund Scheme. it is govemned by the

Payment of Gratulty Act, 1972, Under the ity Act, to specific benefit at the ime of retirement or termination of the
employment on completion of five years or dcath while in emphoymm. The level of benefit provi on the ber's length of
service and salary at the time of s based on actuartal I done by an i actuary

as at the year end. Each year, the Group reviews the Imrel of nmﬁmu In gratulty fund,

{a) Movements In the present value of the benefit are as 5
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
[o] benefit 395.05 $50.11
Interest cost 25.00 39.00
Current service cost 48.29 73.16
Benefits paid (19.79) (26.35)
Actuarial (Gain)/loss on obligations- due to change in financial assumptions - (211.27)
Actuarial (Galn)/Loss on obligations- due to change in demographic assumptions - 15.80
Actuarial on due to change in e 4.04 (45.40)
Closing benefit 452.59 395,05
(b} Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Opening fair value of plan assets 2590.95 274.79
Employer's contributions 36.29 23.33
Interest income 18.77 19.42
Remeasurement gain / (loss) :
Retum on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) 1.07) {0.24)
Benefit paid {19.79) {26.35)
Closing falr value of plan assets 325.15 290.95

{c) ReconcHlation of falr value of plan assets and defined benefit obligation:

The amount Included In the financlal statements arising from the Group's obligation In respect of Its defined benefit obfigation plan Is as follows:

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Falr value of plan assets 325.15 250.95
Present value of ) 452.59 395.05
In the C balance sheet sury It) (127.44) (104.10)
(d) The rec In C of profit and loss In respect of the defined benefit plan are as follows:
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current service cost 48.29 73.16
Net interest expense / (income) 6.23 19.58
Components of defined benefit costs gnised In Ci i of profit 54.52 92.74

and loss




DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

T In Lakhs
Hote: 42 - Employee benefits
(e) The recog in other in respect of the defined benefit plen is as follows:
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Remeasurement on the net defined benefis ilaﬁllty:
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts Included In net interest expense) {1.07) (0.24)
Actuarial gains/ (losses) arising from changes In financial assumptions - 211.27
Actuarial gains / (losses) arising from changes in demographic assumptions - (15.80)
Actuarial gains / (lesses) arising from changes in e (4.04) 45.40
[3 of defined benefit recog as Income / {loss) In other comprehensive income (5.11) 240.63
{f) The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuations were as follows:
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Discount rate {per annum) 6.80% 6.80%
Salary escalatlon rate (per annum) 5.00% 5.00%
Expected rate of retum on plan assets (per annum) 6.80% 6.80%
Retirement age 58 Years 58 Years
y rate during {per ) Indian Assured lives Indian Assuned lives

(9

(h)

[1}]

Iy

Mortailty (2012-14) Mortality (2006-08)

Leaving Service (Age groups) 21-30 years - 4% 21-30 years -1% to 4%
31-40 years - 3% 3140 years - 3%
41-50 years - 2% 41-50 years - 29%
Above 50 years - 1% [Above 50 years - 1%

The estimates of rate of escalation In salary considered in actuarial vajuation, take into account . P and other Factors including supply
and demand in the empioyment market. The above Information is certified by the actuary.

The expected rate of retum on plan assets Is considered as per declaration from Life Insurance Corporation of (ndla (LIC) .

The expected contributions for defined benefit plan for the next financial year Is ¥ 35,00 Lakhs (for the year ended March 31, 2020 - ¥ 25.00 Lakhs)

Yy of benefit
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Expected beneiits for Year 1 73.67 S4.04
Expected benefits for Year 2 40.12 38.09
Expected benefits for Year 3 3335 36.22
Expected benefits for Year 4 20.25 29.04
Expected benefits for Year 5 29.78 17.32
Expected benefits for Year 6 45.42 26.82
Expected benefits for Year 7 61.71 39.88
Expected benefits for Year 8 34.93 56.66
Expected benefits for Year 9 13.12 28.35
Expected benefits for Year 10 and above 595.12 509.09
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the falr value of total plan assels are as
March 31, 2021 Warch 31, 2020
Insurer Managed Funds 100% 100%
Sensitivity analysis
Significant actuarial for of the benefit are rate, expected salary and - The
analysis below has been based on changes of the assumptions occurring at end of year, while holding aII omerassumptlons constant
The result of sensitivity analysis s given below:
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Impact on defined benefit Impact on defined
benefit
Discount rate (- 0.50%) 453% 4.56%
Discount rate {+ 0.50%) -4.20% -4.22%
Salary Escalation Rate (- 0.50%) -4.01% 4.31%
Salary Escalation Rate (+ 0.50%) 4,30% 4.62%
Inherent risks:
The inherent risk for the Company malnly are adverse salary growth or retums on underlying plan assets can result in an
increase In cost of p g these ploy In future. Since the benefits are lump sum in natuve the plan Is not subject to any longevity risks.

Other long term benefit plan

Actuarial valuation for compensated absences is done as at the year end and provision is made as per C rules with ¢ charge / (credit) to the
Consolldated statement of profit and loss amounting to T 71.95 Lakhs [March 31, 2020: (Z 18.28 Lakhs)] and it covers all regular employees. Major drivers In actuarial
assumptions, typically, are years of service and employee compensation.

Obligation In respect of defined benefit plan and other long term employee benefit plans are actuarially determined at the year end using the “Projected Unit Credit
Model". Galns and losses on changes in actuarial assumptions related to defined benefit obligations are recognised In OCi where as gains and losses in respect of other
long term employee benefit plans are recog inthe C of profit and loss.




DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
T in Lakhs

Note 43 - Leases:

(A) Assets taken on operating lease

Effective April 01, 2019, the Group had adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases* and applied to lease contracts existing on April 01, 2019, by electing
‘retrospective approach with the cumulative effect at the date of initial application'. Under this approach, the Group had recorded lease liability at
the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset at an amount equal to
the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments related to that lease recognised under Ind AS 17.

The Group had entered into agreements for taking on leave and license basis certain residential and office premises and also taken vehicles on
lease basis. The Group also has lease arrangements for lands taken on lease at Dahej and Saykha. The lease term in respect of these lease ranges
from 2 to 99 years. In respect of the said leases, the additional information is as under

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets 149.64 152.86
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets accounted for on straight line basis (included in Rent

expenses in Note 39) 37.30 45,52
Total cash outflow for leases 135.41 213.86
Mayurity analysis of lease liabilities (on undiscounted basis)

Particulars Amount Amount
Less than one year 154.57 152.73
One to five years 264.01 384.21
More than five years 702.00 720.00
Total 1,120.58 1,256.94
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised in the balance 10% 10%
sheet

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

i) The Group has not reassessed whether a contract is or contains a lease at the date of initial application.

ii) The Group has utilised the exemptions provided for short-term leases {less than a year) and {eases for low value assets.

i) The Group has utilised hindsight in determining the lease terms where contracts contained options to extend or terminate the lease.
iv) Initial direct costs are excluded from the measurement of right-of-use assets at the date of initial application

The difference between the operating lease commitments as of March 31, 2019, disclosed applying Ind AS 17 and the value of the lease liability
recognised in the balance sheet at the date of initial application is primarily on account of inclusion of extension options reasonably certain to be
exercised, in measuring the lease liability in accordance with Ind AS 116.

General description of significant leasing agreements
(i} Refundable interest free deposits have been given under lease agreements.
(if) Some of the agreements provide for early termination by either party with a specified notice period / renewal with conditions

B. Assets given on operating lease

The Parent Company has entered into operating lease agreement for sublease of property in Worli, Mumbai with original lease period expiring on
December 2022.

The Parent Company has also entered into various operating lease agreements for its properties in Thane with original lease periods expiring upto
Novmeber 2025. These agreements have a non-cancellable period at the beginning of the period for 3/5 years and have rent escalation provisions
of 5% every year or 15% after 3 years.

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
a) Rent income recognised in the Consolidated statement of profit and loss 1,429.62 1,377.86

{akhs)]

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

b) Future minimum lease income under the non-cancellable leases in the aggregate and for each
of the following periods:
i) Not later than one year 199.66 368.33
ii) Later than one year and not later than five years 419.46 4.36
iii) More than five years - -



DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

R. in Lakhs
Note 44 - Segment information:

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision
Maker ("CODM") of the Parent Company. The Managing Director of the Parent Company, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the CODM of the Parent Company. The Group has
identified the following segments as reporting segments based on the information reviewed by CODM.

The business segments have been identified considering :
a) the nature of products and services
b) the differing risks and returns

¢) the internal organisation and management structure, and

d) the internal financial reporting systems
The segment information presented is in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for preparing the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Segment revenues, expenses and results include inter-segment transfers.

A) The primary reporting of the Group has been performed on the basis of business segments, viz:
Chemicals/Bulk Drug- Manufacturing and selling of chemicals, primarily bulk drugs and enzymes.
Property - Renting of properties

Segments have been identified and reported based on the nature of the services, the risk and returns, the organisation structure
and the internal financial reporting systems.

2020-2021
2019-2020
Bulk Drug/Chemicals Property Total
a. Revenue
1 Segment revenue 35,983.97 1,762.91 37,746.88
27,550.83 1,963.05 29,513.88
Less : Inter-segment revenue - 18.00 18.00
230.33 230.33
Unallocated revenue (net) 931.52
1,414.46
E —36.660.40
082001,
b. Result
1 Segment profit 5,857.16 924.24 6,781.40
5,533.83 563.10 6,096.93
2 Finance costs 1,797.46
1,914.04
3 Unallocable income/(expenditure) (net) 245.19
155.69
4 Inter segment results 1.71
171
5 Profit before tax 5,230.84
4,340.29
6 Tax expense
- current tax 1,129.02
338.88
- deferred tax credit (219.00)
(1,948.89)
7 Profit after tax 4,320.82
5,950.30
¢. Other information
1. Segment assets 48,505.21 7,548.25 56,053.46
40,580.16 8,069.03 46,649.19
2 Unallocated corporate assets 12,724.83

13,128.18



DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
Note 44 - Segment information:

R. in Lakhs
2020-2021
2019-2020
Bulk Drug/Chemicals Property Total
3. Total assets 68,778.29
61,777.37
4, Segment liabilities 8,570.50 803.18 9,373.68
7,289.02 814.09 8,103.11
5. Unallocated corporate liabllities 23,330.43
22,320.68
6. Total liabilites 32,704.11
30,423.79
7. Cost incurred during the year to acquire
- segment tangible and intangible assets 5,527.10 - 5,527.10
6,846.95 - 6,846,95
- unallocated segment tangible and intangible assets .
8. Depreciation and amortization expense 1,671.23 347.08 2,018.31
1,126.73 356.58 1,483.31
9 Unaliocated depreciation 12.53
16.66

(Figures in italics are the corresponding figures in respect of the previous year.)

B) Geographical information

Geographical information is reported on the basis of the geographical location of the customers. The management views the
Indian market and export markets as distinct geographical markets.

Revenue by market — The following is the distribution of the Group’s revenue by gecgraphical market:

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

India
Bulk Drug/Chemicals 8,872.98 8,589.85
Property 1,744.91 1,732.72
Europe - Bulk Drug/Chemicals 11,776.24 8,635.50
USA - Bulk Drug/Chemicals 5,902.04 3,002.28
Others countries - Bulk Drug/Chemicals 9,452.76 7,504.28
37,748.93 29,464.63

Assets by geographical area — The following is the camrying amount of segment non-current assets by geographical area in
which the assets are located:

Non-Current assets*
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
India
Bulk Drug/Chemicals 21,924.74 17,687.96
Property 8,568.52 8,938.10
Europe
Bulk Drug/Chemicails 395.45 466.16
USA
Bulk Drug/Chemicals 1,233.42 -
32,122.13 27,092.22

* Non-current assets exclude investments, loans, share application money, other financial assets, tax assets and other non
current assets.

The Group has generated revenue aggregating ¥ 3,982.79 Lakhs from a customers (March 31, 2020 : ¥ 6,529.96 Lakhs from
two customers). Revenue from each of these customers is 10% or more of the group's total revenue.



DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 45 -

List of entities included in the consolidated financial statements is as under

Country of

Proportion of ownership interest as at

Incorporation

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Parent Company:
DVK Investments Private Limited
Subsidiaries
Fermenta Biotech Limited (Formerly Known as DIL Limite
Aegean Properties Limited
CC Square Films Limited*
Fermenta Biotech GmbH
Fermenta Biotech (UK) Limited
G.l. Biotech Private Limited
Fermenta Biotech USA LLC (w.e.f. May 27, 2020)
Fermenta USA LLC (w.e.f. December 01, 2020)
Associate
Health and Wellness India Private Ltd

India

India

India

India

Germany
United Kingdom

India
United States
United States

India

51.22%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

62.50%
100.00%

52.00%

47.15%

53.91%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

62.50%

47.15%

*Application for strike off of CC Square Films Limited was made to Ministry Of Corporate Affairs before March 31,

2021, however, the status on Ministry Of Corporate Affairs website is ‘Under Process of Striking Off’.
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DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the C financlat for the year ended March 31, 2021
TIn Lakhs
Note 47 - Related parties disclosures as per Ind AS 24
A) Hames of the related and description of relationships
a}|Persan Controfling the Company:
Mr. Krishna Dala, Director of the Company and, a person contrulling
the Company
) {17 Ky M
[Hame of Key Managemeant Personnet Designation
Managing Director upto May
Mr. Krishna Datla (FBL) 08, 2021 Executive vice
chairman (w.e.f. May 9, 2021)
Mr, Satish Varma (FBL) Executive Director
Mr. Sanjay Buch (FBL) Non-Executive Director
Mz, Rajestiwarl Datls (alvo relative of the Managing Director) (FBL) Non-Executive Director
M3, Anupama Datla Desai (atso relative of the Managing firector) (FEL Executive Director
Dr. Gopakumar Nalr (FBL) Non-Executive Director
Mr. Vinayak Hajare (FBL) Non-Execulive Director
Mr. Rajashri Ojha (FBL) Non-Executive Director
Chilef Executive Officer upto
M, Prashant Nagre (FBL) May 08, 2021 Managing
Director (w.e.f. May 9, 2021)
My. Sumesh Gandhi (FBL) Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Srikant N Sharma (FBL) Company Secretary
Mr. Suryanayana Allurl (DVK) Director
Mi. Sonla Gupta (DVK)Y Company Secretary
<€) Assoclates
Health and Wellneas Indias Private Limited
d) Enterprises under significant of key or their
Magnolla FNB Private Limited
Dupen Laboratories Private Limited
Lacto Cosmetics (Vapl) Private limited
Stk Road Communications Private Limited
B) Related party transactions:
Sr.Mo, Particulars Person Key Enterprises Aszociates
Controliing Management | under significant
the C of key
managemenkt
personnel or
thelr relatives
1 [:] and Key P
{Including commisslon)*
Mr. Krishna Data . 274.65 . E
(-) (274.75) (-) {-)
Mr_ Satish Verma . 22531 .
{-) (196.13) (-} )
Ms. Anupama Datia Desai - 160.68 - -
{-) (121.58) (-] (-)
Mr. Prashant Nagre - 224.36 -
(-) (186.32) (-} {-)
Mr. Sumesh Gandhl - el.07 - -
-) (17.00) (- (-)
Mr. Srikant N Sharma 40.14
{-) {53.73) t-) {-)
Mr. Suryanarayana Allurl 54.79 - E
(-] (31.26) {-) {-)
Ms. Sonia Gupte v 5.91 - .
(-) {5.93) (-) (-}
C to statutory levy)
Mr. Sanjay Buch 13.21 -
(-) (10.01) () (-)
Dr. Gopakumar Nalr B 13.21 - -
{-) {10.01) {-) (-)
Ms. Rajeshwarl Datla . 13.21 - .
(-) (10.01) -} {-)
Mr. Vinayak Hajare - 13.21 - .
(-} (10.01) (-) )
Mr. Rajashrt Ofha - 13.21 - -
{-) (-} (-) {-)
2 Directors sitting fees
Mr. Krishna Datia - - - .
(-) (2.60) (-} (-}
Ms. Rajeshwarl Datfa 7.50 - -
-) (5.30) {-) {-)
Mr. Satish Varma - - - .
{-) {2.50) (-) (-)
Mr. Sanjay Buch - 8.10 -
(-] (9.00} (-) (-}
Mr. Vinayak Hajare - 8.10 - .
(-) (6.40) ) )
Ms. Rajashri OJha - - 5.00 - B
) ) (-) (-)
Dr. Gopakumar Nalr - 7.70 - -
(-) (7.50) ] =1




DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the C financial for the year ended March 31, 2021
Tin Lakhs
Sr.No. Particulars Person Key Enterprises Assoclates
Conbrolling | Management |under significant
the C af key
managament
personnel or
their relatives
3 Sale of products
Dupen Laboratories Private Limited . - 2551
- -] {20.81) {-)
4 Purchase of raw materials and packing materials
Lecto Cosmetics (Vapi) Private Limited - - - -
{-) - 0.7 {-)
5 Processing charges
Lacin Cosmetics (Vapl) Private Umited - . - -
() () (3.69) (-)
6 Other reimbursements recelved
Lacto Cosmetics (Vapl) Private Limited - . - -
(-] (-) (1.60) (-]
7 Rent Income
Magniolia FNB Private Limnited - - 0.30
(-) (+) (0.30) (-)
Silk Road Communications Private Limited - . 135 E
(-] (=) (1.35) {-)
(Figures in brackets are the coimesponding figuies in respect of the previous year)
* Note: The to the key does not indude the provisions made lor gratulty and loave benefits, as they are

onan basis for the as a whole.

(%] Balance oulstanding as at the end of the year :

March 3], 2021 | March 31, 2020

a. Trade receivables

under of key
personnel or their relatives
Dupen Laboratories Pvt Ltd 26.59 22.45
b. Other financial llablilties
Key management personnel
Mr. Krishna Datla 132.43 130.00
Mr._ Satish Varma 11231 78.00
Ms, Anupama Datla Desal 79.20 40.00
Mr. Prashant Nagre 66.92 50.05
Ms. Rajeshwari Datla 13.21 10.01
Dr. Gopakumar Nalr 13.21 10.01
Mr.Sanjay Buch 13.21 10.01
Mr. Vinayak Hajare 13.21 10.01
Ms. Rajashrl Ojha 13.21
c. Deposit from tenants
Enterprises under significant Influence of key or thair
Slik Road Communlcations Private Limited 0.20 0.20
d. Provision for diminution In the value of investment, Inter-
and other assets
Assodiate
Health and Wellness India Private Limited 223.34 223,34

@. Loans to employees
Key management personnel
Mr.Prashent Nagre - 27.52
1. Inter corporate depostts

Assoclate
Health and Wellness India Frivate Limited 37.00 37.00

Note 48 - and

of ¥ 560.25 Lakhs {March 31, 2020: ¥ 653.85 Lakhs) (exciuding mtgrest and depreciation) has been charged to
the Ounsolidatzd statement of profit and loss. The capital expenditure in the current year on bo ¥ 21.03 Lakhs
(March 31, 2020: T 49720 Lakhs).

MNobe 49 - During the year ended March 31, 2021, Commlsshn of T 324.02 Lakhs in the lmglng Dlmchr and Executive Directors of the Subsidiary

Company and directors sitting fees and T 102.45 Lakhs has been
charged to the Consolidated shlzment of pmﬁt and loss. Durlng the year ended llar:h 3, znzn Commlsslon of T 248.00 Lakhs ip the Hanaglng
Director and sitting fees and o non: of the

Company aggregating ¥ 73,34 I.zkhs has been chamed o the CtmsoMat!d statemnent of profit and loss.



DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 50 - Categories of the financial instruments

T in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Financial assets
Financial assets measured at fair value through Other comprehensive

Investments in equity instruments - quoted 20.83 21.49
Investments in equity instruments - unquoted 411 411
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Investments in mutual funds - unquoted 17.94 129.24
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
(i) Trade receivables 6.801.48 6,977.42
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 1,725.54 849.44
(i) Bank balances other than (ii) above 2,773.80 2,559.54
(iv) Share application money E 80.00
(v) Loans 478.45 2,189.50
(vi) Other financial assets 567.08 1,042.96
Total Financial assets 12,389.23 13,853.70
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
(i) Borrowings 22,932.38 22,029.02
(ii) Lease liabilities 286.21 368.92
(iii) Trade payables 6,213.71 5,633.47
(iv) Other financial liabilities 1,782.38 1,616.15
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 110.15
Derivatives not designated as hedge : .
Total Financial liabilities 31,324.83 29,647.56

Note 51 - Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements:

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Opening balance 411 48.05
Total gains or (losses)

Recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss. - (43.94)
Closing balance 4.11 4.11

Note 52 - Additions of Rs. 860.00 Lakhs to Product know-how represents development expenses incurred to achieve a
predefined optimum yield on a product launched during the year where the application to patent this process is pending

approval from Controller General of Patents, Designs and Trade Marks.



DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Note 53 - Fair Value

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

¥ in Lakhs

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value but fair value disclosures

are required :

Carrying value Fair value

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 6,801.48 6,977.42 6,801.48 6,977.42
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 1,725.54 849.44 1,725.54 849.44
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 2,773.80 2,559.54 2,773.80 2,559.54
(iv) Share application money - 80.00 - 80.00
(v) Loans 478.45 2,189.50 478.45 2,189.50
(vi) Others financial assets 567.08 1,042.96 567.08 1,042.96
Total assets 12,346.35 13,698.86 12,346.35 13,698.86
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 22,932.38 22,029.02 22,932.38 22,029.02
(ii) Lease liabilities 286.21 368.92 286.21 368.92
(iii) Trade payables 6,213.71 5,633.47 6,213.71 5,633.47
(iv) Other financial liabilities 1,782.38 1,616.15 1,782.38 1,616.15
(v) Derivatives not designated as hedge 110.15 E 110.15 -
Total liabilities 31,324.83 29,647.56 31,324.83 29,647.56

The financial assets above do not include other investments measured at fair value through OCI.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the

Consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

Note 54 -Fair value hierarchy :

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Fair value Fair value

Fair Value hierarchy Fair Value hierarchy
Financial assets measured at fair value
through Other comprehensive income
Investments in equity shares-quoted 20.83 Level 1 21.49 Level 1
Investments in equity shares-unquoted 4.11 Level 3 4.11 Level 3
Financial assets measured at fair value 17.94 Level 1 129.24 Level 1
through profit or loss ks ev
Investments in mutual funds
Financial Liabilities measured at fair
value through profit or loss
Derivatives not designated as hedge 110.15 Level 2 - -




DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the C I financial for the year ended March 31, 2021

Tin Lakhs
Note 55 -Financlal risk management objectives and policles

The Group is exposed to credit risk, fiquidity risk and market risk. The Group's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and
execute its business strategies. The Board of Directors review and agree policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

a) Market risk:
Market risk is the risk of loss of future eamings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from adverse changes in market rates and prices
{such as Interest rates, forelgn curency exchange rates, commodity prices and equity price risk). Market risk Is attributable to all market risk-
financial i all foreign curency receivables and payables and all short term and long-term borrowings. The Group s exposed to
market risks related to forelgn exchange rate risk, commaodity rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risks. Thus, the
Group’s exposure to market risk Is a function of g activities, and g activities in foreign currencies.

1) Equity price risk

The Group's unlisted equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising form uncertainties about future values of the investments In
securitles. The Group manages the equlity price risk through diversification and by placing limits on Individual and total equity Instruments. The
Group's Board of Directors review and approve, all investments in the equity investments.

As at March 31, 2021, the group had exposure to equity securitles measured at falr value. The changes in falr values of the equity investments were
strongly pasitively co-related with changes In market index. As at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020, the Group did not have material investments
in / exposure to quoted or unquoted securitles.

1) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk Is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market Interest rate,
The Group's exposure ta the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarlly to the Group's long-term and short term bonmowings obligations
with floating interest rates.

The Group manages it's interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate long term and short term bommowings.

Interest rate sensltivity

The table Tates the y to a change in interest rates on the borrowings. With all other variables heid
constant, the Group’s profit before tax will be aﬁected as below due to change in interest rate:

Year ended {+)Increase/(-) | Effect an profit
decrease in (decrease) /
basis points increase #

March 31, 2021 +0.50 (115.71)
-0,50 115.71
March 31, 2020 +0.50 {110.09)
-0.50 110.09

# Loss before tax will have an equal but opposite impact,

The assumed movement in basls points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the observable market environment as at the respective
year end.

N} Commodity rate risk

Exposure to market risk with respect to commodity prices primarily arises from the Group's purchases and sales of active pharmaceutical
Ingredients, including the raw material components for such active pharmaceutical ingredlents. The prices of the Group's raw materials generally are
stable. Cost of raw materials forms the largest portion of the Group’s cost of revenues, A large portion of the Group's sales are subject to commodlty
rate risk having a volatile pricing. The group overall supply and pricing to declde

overcome risk of changing prices of the products.

iv) Forelgn currency risk

The Group’s foreign exchange risk arises from its foreign currency revenues and expenses and foreign currency borrowlings. As a result, if the value
of the Indlan rupee appreclates relative to these foreign currencles, the Groups's and in Indlan rupees may decrease
or Increase and vice-versa. The exchange rate between the Indian rupee and these foreign currencles have changed substantlally in recent perlods
and may continue to fluctuate substantially in the future. Consequently, the Group largely uses the natural hedge to mitigate the risk of changes in
forelgn curency exchange rates in respect of Its highly probabie forecasted transactions and recognised assets and llabilities.

The year end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged (before giving effects of natural hedge) by derivative instrument or otherwise
are given below:

A) Significant foreign currency risk exposure relating to trade recelvables, other financial assets and cash and cash equivalents :

Particulars
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Amount In Amount In
forelgn forelgn
Currency cumency T In Lakhs cumency T In Lakhs
( In Lakhs ) { In Lakhs )
Flnanclal assets
Cash and cash equivalents (including EEFC) EURO 2.77 238.12 5.60 465.11
usD 5.40 396.16 131 98.13
SGD 0.02 0.90 0.02 0.87
Trade receivables and other financlal assets usD 46.28 3,392.27 46.68 3,506.00
EURO 2834 | 2,438.76 32.66 2,786.40




DVK iNVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the C financial for the year ended March 31, 2021
B} Slgnificant forelgn currency risk g to gs and trade payabfles :
Ip
R March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Amount In Amount in
forelgn forelgn
Currency cumency % In Lakhs Cumrency cumrency T In Lakhs
( in Lakhs ) { in Lakhs )
Financial labllities
Trade payable EURO = - EUROD 11.30 940.42
usD 13.35 978.41 | USD 5.39 405,29
CzK - - CzZK 0.01 0.03
GBP - - GBP 0.01 0.60
Barrowlngs ( PCFC ) EURO 57.88 4,980.68 | EURO 62.33 5,185.86
usb 8,53 625.56 | USD 16.40 1,233.97
Extemmal Commercial borrowing (ECB) EURO 16.65 1,432.31 | EURO 22.52 1,873.85
Foreign Cumency Term Loan {FCTL) EURO 12.73 1,095.61 | EURO 22,52 1,873.40

C) Forelgn currency sensitivity

For the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020, every 5% strengthening in the exchange rate between the Indian rupee and the respective
currencies for the above mentioned financlal assets / liabilities would Increase the Group’s profit and Increase the Group's equity by approximately ¥
146.41 Lakhs and ¥ 232.62 Lakhs, respectively. A 5% weahenlng of the Indian rupee and the respective cumrencies would lead to an equal but

effect. in 'S opinion, the [ of the i forelgn exchange risk because the exposure at
the end of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure during the year

D) Derivative contracts

The Parent ks exposed to exchange rate risk that artses from its forelgn exchange and in US Dollars and Euros and
foreign currency debts in US dollars and Euros. The Company uses cross currency interest rate swap (known as, “derivatives®) to mitigate Its risk of
changes In foreign currency exchange rates. The counterparty for these contracts is generally a bank.

The foliowing table gives detalls in respect of the amount of foreign exchange derivative contract:
Flgures In Lakhs

Cross March 31, March 31,
Particulars Currency Buy/Sell Currency 2021 2020
Derivatives not deslgnated as hedges
Cross cumency interest rate swap EUR ]Tauy INR 28.32

b} Credit risk

Credilt risk Is the risk of financial loss to the Group, If a customer or counterparty i a financial insument falis to meet Its contractual obligations and
arises principally from the Group's recelvables from customers, loans and other financial assets. Credit risk is gh credit app:
establishing credit limits and ¢ the ¢ of counter party to which the Group grants credit terms In the normal
course of business.
Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financlal assets rep the credit

) Trade recelvables

The Group has used expected credlt loss (ECL) model for assessing the impainment loss. For this purpese, the Group uses a provision matrix to
compute the expected credit loss amount. The provision matrix takes intp account extemal and internal risk factors and historical data of credit
losses from various customers. The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables which Is low, as its customers are

widely spread with smail {For Inp for trade rec - Refer note 15)
Trade recelvables March 31, March 31,
2021 2020
Not due 6,063.42 2,750.41
1 - 90 days 45.11 2,702.74
91 -180 days 150.32 1,471.44
Beyond 180 days 1,023.87 419.44
7.282.72 7.344.03
it} Financial instr and cash
Credlt risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Group's In accordance with the Gmups policy. Investments of
surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit iimtts 1o each ¢ y credlt {imits are
reviewed by the Group's Board of Directors on an annual basls. The limits are set to minimise the concentration nf risks and therefore mitigate
financial loss gh ¢ y's fallure to make payments. Credit risk In case of lntercorporate deposit given Is managed by the

Group's in accordance with the Gmnps policy. ICD only be given out of surplus funds, are made only with the approval of the Group's Board of
Directors and are reviewed by the Group's Board on an annual basis,

c) Liguldity risk
Liquidity risk Is the risk that the Group will not be able to settie or meet its obligations as they fall due. The Group's policy on liquidity risk is to
maintain sufficlent liquidity in the form of cash and investment in liquid mutual funds to meet the Group's operating requirements wlth an
P levet of In processes and policies related to such risks are by senlor
the Group's net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basts of expected cash flows.

Maturity profile of flnanclal llabllities
The table below provi details rega g the ining contractual maturities of financlal llabilities at the reporting date based on contractual
undiscounted payments.

March 31, 2021 Amount lessthanl | 1to5 | More than 5
year !eals ears
Borrowings PRV E v ] ey T By

(Other financial llabilities (including
derivatives not deslgnated as hedge) 1,892.53 1,844.71 47.82
Lease liabliitles 286.21 116.1% 170.02
Trade payables 6,213.71 6,213.71 : -
31.324.83 20,063.19 6,578.32 4,683.32

Less than 1 1to5 More than 5

March 31, 2020 Amount Sar ears P
Borrowings 22,029.02 11,850.35 5,207.06 4,971.61
Other financial liabllities 1,616.15 1,556.71 59.44 -
Lease liabllities 368.92 104.85 264.07 -
Trade payables 5.633.47 5,633.47 - -
Total 29,647.56 19,145.38 | 5,530.57 4,971.61

The Group had unutilised credit limit of borrowing facillties as at March 31, 2021: ¥ 2,084.00 lakhs and as at March 31, 2020 ¥ 3,400.00 lakhs from
banks.



DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 56 - Capital management
The Group's capital management objectives are:

-to ensure the Groups’s ability to continue as a going concern; and

-to provide an adequate return to shareholders through optimisation of debts and equity balance.

T in Lakhs

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of debt less cash and cash equivalents as presented on
the face of the Consolidated financial statements. The Group's objective for capital management is to maintain an

optimum overall financial structure.

(i) The gearing ratio at the end of the year was as follows:

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Debts (Term loans and loans repayable on demand 22,932.38 22,029.02
including current maturities of long term borrowings)

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 16) 1,725.54 849.44
Net debt 21,206.84 21,179.58
Total equity 23,344.85 20,854.49
Net debt to equity ratio 91% 102%

(ii) Dividend on equity shares paid during the year

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Dividend on equity shares

Dividend for the year ended March 31, 2019 of ¥ 1.25
per share on 91,72,792 equity shares of ¥ 5.00/- each,
fully paid up

Dividend distribution tax on above

Interim dividend paid during the year ended March 31,
2020 of T 5.00/- per share on 96,15,774 equity shares
(net of 1,94,555 equity shares of ¥ 5.00/- each which
were held by ESOP Trust) [Refer note 21(c)]

Dividend distribution tax on above

114.68

23.57
480.78

100.83




DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
R in Lakhs
Note 57 - Investment properties

The Group's investment properties consist of Thane One Building and freehold land located at Majiwade Thane. Out of
the 16 floors, ground to 13 floors have been considered as Investment property by the Management. In addition to
Thane One building and freehold land at thane, the Group has freehold land at Takawe and also premises at Ceejay
House, Worli, Mumbai.

Criteria used for classification of property as investment property

The Group has considered the following for classification of property as investment property:
(1) Investment property comprises building and other assets required to provide ancillary services to the occupants of
the investment property.

(ii) The properties that are not occupied by the Group for use in production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes, or for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are held primarily to earn rental income
and capital appreciation are classified as investment property.

The Group has a building which is primarily meant for renting, is classified as an investment property, except for the
part of that building which is used for administrative purposes, and hence classified as owner-occupied property. The
Group has apportioned the cost of the property between investment property and owner-occupied property in the ratio
of area used, respectively, as a percentage of total area.

Estimation of fair value

The fair value of the Investment Property has been determined as % 44,204.60 Lakhs. (previous year T 44,688.19 Lakhs)
The fair value has been determined by an external, independent property valuer, having appropriate professional
qualification and recent experience in the location and category of the property being valued. The Company obtains
independent valuation for its investment property and fair value measurement has been categorised as Level 3. The
fair value has been arrived at by using comparable market rate approach. The main inputs used are quantum, area,
location, demand, restrictive entry to the complex, age of building and trend of fair market rent in village Majiwada
area and Takawe area.

Amount recognised in Consolidated statement of profit and loss

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Income from investment properties 1,744 .91 1,732.72
Less: Direct operating expenses 820.67 1,169.62

(including repairs and maintenance)
generating income from investment

properties

Income arising from investment 924.24 563.10
properties

Less: Depreciation (255.80) (256.64)
Income/(loss) arising from investment 668.44 306.46

properties after depreciation

Refer note 428 for operating lease arrangements and total future minimum lease rentals receivable.

Refer note 23 for the existence of restrictions on the realisability of investment property or the remittance of income
and proceeds of disposal.



DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note: 58 - Income tax T in Lakhs
A Taxexp rec in the & of profit and loss and other comprehensive income ¢ of:
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Tax expenses:

Current tax 1,129.02 338.88

Deferred tax credit (219.00) (1,948.89)

Income tax exp rec in the C d 910.02 (1,610.01)

statement of profit and loss

Tax exp recogni in other comp ive income {1.49) 70.07

Total tax expense 908.53 (1,539.94)
8 A reconciliation of income tax o the [ by applying the y

income tax rate to the profit before income tax Is summadsred below: i}

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Profit before tax 5.230.84 4,340,209
Enacted income tax rate in India (%) # 34.994% 29.120%
Income tax expense calculated at enacted income tax rate 1,827.86 1,263.89
Effect of tax on:

impact of change in tax rates on Deferred tax assets (137.71) 84.89
MAT Credit entitement recognised - {5,072,14)
Utilisation of Deferned tax asset recognised on unaborbed - 2,946.52

depreciation/ carried forward losses pursuant to scheme of
amalgamation (refer nate 61)

Expenses disallowed under Income Tax Act 76.02 65.35
Carmied forward tax loss / unabsorbed tax depreciation of 66.62 65.18
subsidairy for the current year for which DTA is not created

Income exempted from tax (1,037.87) (1,198.96)
Incremental deduction on account of research and {7.35) {167.54)
development costs

Reversal of income tax expense of financlal year 2018-19 - (510.03)
pursuant to scheme of amalgamation {Refer note 61)

Differential tax effect due to effective tax rate difference 326.85 853.92
Others (204.40) 58.91
Total income tax expense 910.02 {1,610.01)
Tax expense recognised in profit or toss 910.02 (1,610.01)
Tax exp recogni in other comp ive income (1.49) 70.07
Total tax expense 908.53 (1,539.94)

# The tax rate used for reconciliation above is the corporate tax rate of 34.944% (March 31, 2020:
29.12%) at which the Parent Company is liable to pay tax on taxable income under the Indian tax Law.

C The major compenents of deferred tax (llabllities)/assets arising on account of temporary differences are as follows:

For the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars As at Statement of profit Other As at
April 01, 2020 and loss comprehensiv March 31, 2021
e income

{1} Components of deferred tax assets (net)
Deferred tax labllities

Property, Plant and Equipment, investment property and {1,533.23) (507.83) - {2,041.06)
intanglble assets: Impact of difference between written
down value as per books of account and income tax

Deferred tax assets

Expenses claimed for tax purpese on payment basis 121.99 12.95 1.49 136.43
Allowance for doubtful debts and advances 14217 19.97 - 162.14
Allowance for impairment in the value of non current - 138.32 138.32
investment and share application money

Effect of deferred tax on Inventory and other related items - 142.19 - 142.19
MAT Credit entifement 5,072.14 326.85 - 5,398.99
Unabosrbed carried forward losses - 71.75 - 77.75
Others 7.44 8.80 - 16.24
Deferred ax credit 219.00 1.49 6,072.06

Net deferred tax assets 3,81051 4,031.01




DVK INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

D

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars As at Statement of profit Other As at
April 01, 2019 and loss comprehensltv March 31, 2020
€ Income

{l) Components of deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax liabilides

Property, Piant and Equipment, investment property and (1,457.07) {76.16) - (1,533.23)
in@angible assets: Impact of difference between written

down value as per books of account and income tax

Deferred tax assets
Expenses clalmed for lax purpose on payment basls 218.53 (26.47) (70.07) 121.99
Allowance for doubtful debts and advances 22372 (81.55) . 142.17
Unabsorbed depreciation/carried forward losses 2,946.51 (2,946.51)
MAT Credit entittiement - 5,072.14 - 5,072.14
Others - 1.44 - 1.44
Deferred tax credit / (charge) 1,948.89 (70.07)
Net deferred tax assets 1,931.70 3,810,51
Detalls of unused tax losses and unabsorbed tax depreciation for which deferred tax assets have not been recognised:
Particulars March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Unused tax losses (capital in nature) 12435 22542
Unused tax losses of subsidiary 414.49 223.85

The unused tax Josses (capital in nature) will expire from financial year 2021-22 to financlal year 2027-
28 and unused tax losses of subsidlary can be used for indefinite period.

Pursuant to scheme of I jon as loned in note 1.2, during the financial year 2018-19 { assessment year 2019-2020)
Company has ug ised income tax retum filed on july 26, 2020, recognised an Intanglble assets of € 60,390.05 Lakhs in the form
of Goodwill in its income tax block of assels and has claimed under section 32(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 ('the Act’) depreciation of
15,097.51 Lakhs for assessment year 2019-2020 and for assessment year 2020-2021, T 11,323.15 Lakhs. Pending the outcome of the
assessment by the income tax authoritles, the L of depreciation has not been considered as deduction for arriving at the
for lon and also deferned tax assels has not been created on the amount recognised as goodwill for the purposes of the

Act.
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Note 59 -Acquisition of a subsidiary

(i) On December 01, 2020, Fermenta Biotech USA LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Subsidiary
Company, has acquired 52% of membership interest in AGD Nutrition LLC, which is into similar line of
business of the Subsidiary Company. The name of AGD Nutrition LLC has since been changed to Fermenta
USA LLC.

(ii) Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
The Company has determined the fair values as at the acquistion date based on valuation report obtained
from an independent valuer.

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities are set out in the

table below:
Particulars T in Lakhs
Assets
Intangible assets 436.52
Trade receivables 164.34
Cash and cash equivalents 61.15
Inventories 1452.26
Other current assets 18.19
2132.46
Liabilities
Trade Payables 1577.75
Other current liabilities 2.67
1580.42
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 552.04
(iii) Calculation of Goodwill
Total consideration paid in Cash 943.85
Add: Non Controlling Interest 405.09
Less: Fair vale of nets assets acquired -552.04
Goodwill 796.90
(iv) Net cash outfiow arising on acquistion
Cash consideration 943.85
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired -61.15
882.70

(v) The Company's objective is of creating an integrated nutritional and pharmaceutical business with a
global footprint. Goodwill of T 658.48 Lakhs is attributable to future growth of business.

(vi) The transaction cost of ¥ 9.10 Lakhs have been expensed in the consolidated statement of profit and
loss. .

(vii) The fair value of the financial assets includes receivables with a fair value of ¥ 164.34 Lakhs and the
management expects to collect the entire amount of receivables.

(viii) Fermenta USA LLC has reported revenue of T 2414.01 Lakhs and loss after tax of ¥ 601.87 Lakhs
from the date of acquistion till March 31, 2021. Had the entity been acquired from April 01, 2020, it would
have reported revenue of ¥ 5151.72 Lakhs Loss after tax of ¥ 515.04 Lakhs during 2020-21.
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Note 60 - Share-based payments R In Lakhs
Employee share option plan of the Parent Company

This ESOP 2019 scheme had been framed pursuant to the Scheme of A the ile Fermenta Biotech Limited
{“Transferor Company*) with the DIL Limited (“Transferee Company”) and their respective The T Company prior to the
Scheme of jon had i d the ‘Fermenta Blotech Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan 2019' and were granted employee
stock opti to lts eligibl pl further, the ber of pti issued shall equal to the product of number of ransferor

on effecti of Schemme muitiplied by the Share exchange ratic (0.398) and each transferee option shall have an
exen:ise price per equity share equal to transferor option exercise price per equity shares divided by the share exchange ratio {0.398) and
fractions rounded off to the next higher whole number. The terms and conditions of ESOP 2019 Scheme of DIL Limited are not less favourable
than those of ESOP Scheme of erstwhile Fermenta Blotech Limited. Under the ESOP 2019 Scheme, stock options have been issued to the

g ploy of F Blotech Limited {(Refer note 1.2).
In accordance with the terms of the plan, as app by the of F Bi h Limited at an extra general meeting,
executives and senior employ with the G were g d op to purchase equity shares.

Each employee share option converts into one equity share of the Parent Company on exercise. No amounts are paid or payable by the
recipient on recelpt of the option. The options carmry neither rights to dividends nor voting rights. Options may be exercised at any time from
the date of vesting to ﬁie date of their expiry.

The of d is calculated in accordance with the performance-based formula and is subject to appmval by the
remunerann committee. The formula rewards executives and senior employees to the extent of the Parent C and the i s
ac judged inst both qualitative and quantiative criteria.
The following share-based pay ar were in exi e during the current year:
Options sertes Grant date Expiry date Exercise price Fair value at grant
dates

Plan 1 (60% of options 160,708 25.02.2019, 25.02.2025, 83.67 421.71 and 298.16
granted under ESOP 2019) 12.08.2019 and 12.08.2025 and

01.09.2020 28.02.2025
Plan 1 (20% of options 53,570 25.02.2019, 25.02.2026, 83.67 421.71 and 298.16
granted under ESOP 2019) 12.08.2019 and 12.08.2026 and

01.09.2020 28.02.2026
Plan 1 {20% of options 53,570 25.02.2019, 25.02.2027, 83.67 421.71 and 298.16
granted under ESOP 2019) 12.08.2019 and 12.08.2027 and

01.09.2020 28.02.2027
Plan 2 (100% of options 217,410 25.02.2019 25.02.2025 83.67 418.22
granted under ESOP 2019)
Options granted under ESOP 2019 shall vest not before 1 (one) year and not later than maximum Vesting Penod of 5 (five) years from the
date of grant of such Options. Subject to the minimum vesting period of one year, the i and of the Board
at its discretion app for acc ion of Vesting of any or all unvested Options of the Option Grantee.

The above number of options, fair value at grant dates and exercise price were adjusted in accordance with the Share exchange ratio
(0.398:1) as per the scheme of amailgamation.

*The number of options are after glving effect of the amalgamation and bonus shares issued during the previous year.

1.2 Fair valye of share options amnted

The wiighted average fair value of the share options granted during the financial year is ¥ 298.16 (Previous year T 421.71). Options were
priced using Black-Scholes option pricing model. Where relevant, the expected life used in the model has been calculated based on a
weighted average of vests. Expected volatility is based on the historical share price information of similar listed entitles.

Option serles

Inputs into the model Plan 1 (60% of Plan 1 (20% of Pian 1 (20% of Plan 2 (100% of
options g p g d ns g d ptions g

under ESOP 2019)  under ESOP 2019) under ESOP 2019) under ESOP 2019)
Grant date share price 421.71 and 296.16 421.71 and 298.16  421.71 and 298.16 418.22
Exercise price 83.67 83.67 83.67 83.67
Expected volatility 69.28% and 65.33% 68.83% and 61.84% 68.08% and 60.02% 69.28%
Option life 451 years and 4 5.51 years and 5 6.51 years and 6 4.51 years
Dividend yield 0% and 0.57% 0% and 0.57% 0% and 0.57% 0.00%
Risk-free Interest rate 7.14% and 5.22% 7.25% and 5.53% 7.35% and 5.78% 7.14%

ks | ns du ar
The following reconciles the share opti ding at the ing and end of the year:
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
of op W g Number of of 9! g
exerclse price exercise price

Balance at beginning of year 427,647 83.67 140,199 83.67
Pursuant to scheme of amalgamation (Refer Note 1. - - - -
Granted during the year 70,278 83.67 5,219 83.67
Forfelted during the year 12,667 83.67 2,869 83.67
Bonus options issued during the year - - 285,098 83.67
Exercised during the year . - - -
Expired during the year . - - -
Balance at end of year 485,258 83.67 427,647 83.67

Number of shares and exercise price are adjusted in accordance with the Share exchange ratio (0.398:1) as per the scheme of amalgamation
for the year ended March 31, 2020,

No share options were exercised during the year .
1.4 Share options outstanding at the end of the year

The share options outstanding at the end of the year had a weighted average exercise price of T 83.67 (as at March 31, 2020: ¥ 83.67),and a
g ining contractual life of 1.84 years.
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T. in Lakhs
Note 61 - Commitments:
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 668.71 1,852.15
capital account and not provided for (Net of advances)

(b) Lease commitments 261.66 362.08
950.37 2,214.23

Note 62 - Contingent liabililes:
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts;
a) Tax matters

Service tax department raised demand of T 22.50 22.50 22.50
Lakhs consisting of Service Tax of ¥ 7.50 Lakhs and

penalty of ¥ 15.00 Lakhs in connection with services

rendered post demerger of the pharmaceutical

division. Commissioner of Service Tax Mumbai and

CESTAT has upheld the order of Joint Commissioner of

Service Tax. The Company has preferred an appeal to

Bombay High Court.

The Deputy Commissioner of sales tax has confirmed 4.63 4.63
the order of the Assistant Commissioner of sales tax

Vapi, Gujarat for year 1992-93 and 1993-94 for

demand of interest and penalty due to shortfall in tax

payment on account of computation of purchase tax

setoff. Company has preferred an appeal to sales tax

tribunal Ahmedabad, Gujarat and obtained stay against

the order/demand of the Assistant Commissioner

pending final disposal. — —
27.13 27.13

—_—
Note: Future cash outflows in respect of the above are determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with various
authorities/forums and/or final outcome of the matters.

Note 63 a) In view of the amalgamation referred to in note 1.2, the Parent, in the previous year, had recognised a deferred tax asset on unutilised

carried forward losses and depreciation in respect of DIL Limited as it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
unutilised carried forward losses can be utilised.

b) During the previous year ended March 31, 2020, the management has assessed the recoverability of MAT credit entittement and
recognised MAT credit of ? 5,072.14 Lakhs (presented within deferred tax asset). Further, the effect of change in the Minimum alternative tax
rate from 18% to 15% plus applicable surcharge and health and education cess thereon as enacted in the Taxation Law {Amendment)
Ordinance, 2019 and also a change in the income tax rate from 30% to 25% plus applicable surcharge and health and education cess thereon
as enacted in the Union Budget 2019 for companies whith have tumover less than 400 crores for the financial year 2017-18. Accordingly, the
Parent Company had measured the deferred taxes (other than MAT credit entitiement as referred above) as at March 31, 2020 at the eligible
tax rate of 25% olus anolicable surcharoe and health and education cess thereon.

¢) The combined effects of the above [61{a) and 61(b)} have been included in the tax expense for the year ended 31st March, 2020. reversal
of current tax by 510.03 Lakhs and net credit for deferred tax of 1,611.08 Lakhs.

Note 64 - Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as per Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006

(a)

(b)

()

d)
(e)

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
i} Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the 78.34 98.01
accounting year
ii} Interest due on above - =
The Total of (i) and (ii} 78.34 98.01
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, - -

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006) along with the
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during
each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year)
but  without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each - -
accountino vear: and
The amount of further interest ining due and payable even in the succeeding - -

years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small
enterprises for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
Section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The information regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of
information available with the Group. This has been relied upon by the auditors.
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<. In Lakhs
Note 65 - Capitalisation of borrowing costs

During the year ended March 31, 2021, the Group capitalised the following borrowing costs attributable to qualifying assets to the cost of
property, plant and equipment / capital work-in-progress {(CWIP). Consequently, finance costs disclosed under note 37 are net of amounts
capitalised by the Group Company.

Particulars March 31, 2021 Jarch 31, 2020
Finance costs (including forex revaluation) 328.44 234,29
Total 328.44 234.29

Note 66 The Parent Company had given (unsecured) Inter-corporate deposits aggregating ¥ 2,130.00 Lakhs in various tranches to another entity for
the development of the new product i.e. cholesterol from Fish Oil. The amount outstanding as on March 31, 2021 is ¥ 521.96 Lakhs, including
interest of ¥ 46.96 Lakhs. Subsequent to the end of the year, the other entity has further repaid an amount of T 521.96 Lakhs towards the
aggregate outstanding as mentioned above, and there is no outstanding against the said Inter-corporate deposits as on date.

Note 67 As per the current assessment of the situation based on the internal and extemal information available up to the date of approval of these
consolidated financial financial statements by the Board of Directors, the Group believes that the Impact of Covid-19 on its business, assets,
internal financial controts, profitability and liquidity, both present and future, would be limited. The eventual outcome of the impact of the
global heaith pandemic may be different from those-estimated as on the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements and the
Group will closely monitor any material changes to the economic environment and their impact on its business in the times to come.

Note 68 The Consolidated financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on September 27,
2021.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

DVK Investments Private Limited
KRISHNA DATLA % VARMA

Director Director
W2
a/

NIA GUPTE
Company Secretary

Thane Thane
Date: September 27, 2021 Date: September 27, 2021
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